Date: THURSDAY, 11 JULY 2013
Time: 10:00 am

Location: THE TEA ROOM - FIRST FLOOR, TOWN
HALL, TOWN HALL SQUARE, LEICESTER

HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD

Councillors: Councillor Rory Palmer, Deputy City Mayor (Chair)

Councillor Rita Patel Assistant City Mayor and Councillor Manjula Sood MBE,
Assistant City Mayor

City Council Officers: Deb Watson, Strategic Director, Adult Social Care,
Health and Housing

Elaine McHale, Interim Strategic Director, Children’s Services
Tracie Rees, Director, Care Services and Commissioning,
Adult Social Care

NHS Representatives: Professor. Azhar Farooqi, Co-Chair,  Leicester City
Clinical Commissioning Group

Dr Simon Freeman, Managing Director, Leicester City Clinical Commissioning Group

David Sharp, Area Director, Leicestershire and Lincolnshire NHS Commissioning
Board

Healthwatch / Other Representatives: Philip Parkinson, Interim Chair,
Healthwatch Leicester

Chief Superintendent, Rob Nixon, Leicester City Basic Command Unit Commander,
Leicestershire Police

Members of the Board are summoned to attend the above meeting to consider the
items of business listed overleaf.

Members of the public and the press are welcome to attend.

%T-C’_oﬂ

For Monitoring Officer

o &= Leicestershire [INHS|

.@* §— Police ) ; INHS |
CoQ i healthwatch \¥ Leicester City o
C?Q Clty Mayor e Leicester Clinical Commissioning Group Commissioning Board



INFORMATION FOR MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC

ACCESS TO INFORMATION AND MEETINGS

You have the right to attend meetings to hear decisions being made. You can also
attend Committees, as well as meetings of the full Council. Tweeting in formal
Council meetings is fine as long as it does not disrupt the meeting. There are
procedures for you to ask questions and make representations to Scrutiny
Commissions, Community Meetings and Council. Please contact Democratic
Support, as detailed below for further guidance on this.

You also have the right to see copies of agendas and minutes. Agendas and minutes
are available on the Council’'s website at www.cabinet.leicester.gov.uk or by
contacting us as detailed below.

Dates of meetings are available at the Customer Service Centre, King Street, Town
Hall Reception and on the Website.

There are certain occasions when the Council's meetings may need to discuss
issues in private session. The reasons for dealing with matters in private session are
set down in law.

WHEELCHAIR ACCESS

Meetings are held at the Town Hall. The Meeting rooms are all accessible to
wheelchair users. Wheelchair access to the Town Hall is from Horsefair Street
(Take the lift to the ground floor and go straight ahead to main reception).

BRAILLE/AUDIO TAPE/TRANSLATION

If there are any particular reports that you would like translating or providing on audio
tape, the Democratic Services Officer can organise this for you (production times will
depend upon equipment/facility availability).

INDUCTION LOOPS

There are induction loop facilities in meeting rooms. Please speak to the Democratic
Services Officer at the meeting if you wish to use this facility or contact them as
detailed below.

General Enquiries - if you have any queries about any of the above or the
business to be discussed, please contact Graham Carey, Democratic Support
on (0116) 229 8813 or email Graham.Carey@leicester.gov.uk or call in at the
Town Hall.

Press Enquiries - please phone the Communications Unit on 252 6081



6.

WELCOME AND INTRODUCTIONS
APOLOGIES
DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

Members of the Board are asked to declare any interests they may have in the
business on the agenda.

DISCUSSION SESSION - JOINT HEALTH AND Appendix A
WELLBEING STRATEGY PRIORITY 3: SUPPORT
INDEPENDENCE

The discussion session has been planned to last approximately 90 minutes and
representatives of interested bodies have been invited to the meeting. The
Joint Health and Wellbeing Strategy (Closing the Gap) is attached.

Deb Watson, Strategic Director Adult Social Care, Health and Housing and
Simon Freeman, Managing Director, Leicester City Clinical Commissioning
Group will also give a presentation.

MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING

The minutes of the meeting held on 11 April 2013 have been circulated previously and the
Board is asked to confirm them as a correct record.

The minutes can also been found on the Council’'s Web-site at the following link:-

http://www.cabinet.leicester.gov.uk/documents/q5616/Printed%20minutes%20Thursday%2011-
Apr-2013%2010.30%20Health%20and%20Wellbeing%20Board.pdf?T=1

MID-STAFFORDSHIRE FOUNDATION TRUST PUBLIC Appendix B
INQUIRY

To consider the attached report from the local Clinical Collaborative Interface
Group about the recommendations in the Mid Staffordshire NHS Foundation
Trust Public Inquiry Report (Francis Report).

HEALTH PROTECTION BOARD Appendix C

To note a report on the Health Protection Board and to note that it has met for
the first time.

WINTERBOURNE VIEW CONCORDAT Appendix D
To note a letter from Norman Lamb MP (Minister of State for Care and

Support) about the Winterbourne View Concordat and a report summarising
progress. The letter and report are attached.



10.

11.

ANNOUNCEMENTS

Members of the Board to make announcements, if appropriate, on topics of
interest.

QUESTIONS FROM MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC

The Chair to invite questions from members of the public.

DATES OF FUTURE MEETINGS

To note that future meetings of the Board will held on the following dates:-

Tuesday 8 October 2013
Thursday 30 January 2014
Thursday 3 April 2013
Thursday 3 July 2014
Thursday 9 October 2014

Meetings of the Board will be held in the Tea Room, 1% Floor Town Hall at
10.00am unless stated otherwise on the agenda for the meetings.



@
- mE g < Clty

i Leicester City i Leiceslershire OQ
Commissioning Board Clinicad Commissianing G roup @ Police h’tﬂ-lthw tch Leicester

Leloester City Council



April 2013

Table of contents

CONTENT

1. Foreword

2. Executive summary

3. Introduction

4.  Our vision and principles

5. A snapshot of health and wellbeing in Leicester

6. Strategic priorities summarised

7. Strategic priority 1: Improve outcomes for children and young people

8. Strategic priority 2: Reduce premature mortality

9. Strategic priority 3: Support independence

10. Strategic priority 4: Improve mental health and emotional resilience

11. Strategic priority 5: Focus on the wider determinants of health through
effective deployment of resources, partnership and community working

12. Equalities

13. Engagement

14. Measuring our progress

15. Next steps

Appendix A Summary of engagement

Appendix B Key performance indicators

10-13

15

16-18

19-22

23-26

27-29

30

32

33

34

35

37

38-39




Endorsements

_i..u_'.i""
Leicester Cily
Clinical Commissioning Group

healthwatch

Leicester

NHS

Commissioning Board

Leinasarshire

Police

Leicester City Clinical Commissioning Group (LC CCG)

We have worked with the Health and Wellbeing Board to jointly develop the Health
and Wellbeing Strategy. It is aligned to the commissioning priorities of Leicester
City Clinical Commissioning Group and we believe it fully reflects the needs of our
unique local population. We are committed to working closely with the Health and
Wellbeing Board to deliver the strategy for the benefit of the local population and
to help people in Leicester live longer, healthier lives.

Prof Azhar Farooqi, Chair, Leicester City Clinical Commissioning Group

Healthwatch Leicester

Healthwatch Leicester fully supports the creation and implementation of the Joint
Health and Wellbeing Strategy for Leicester. From 1 April 2013 Healthwatch
Leicester will work with the Health and Wellbeing Board and other relevant
stakeholders to achieve the aims set out in the strategy. Healthwatch Leicester
considers that the development of the Joint Health and Wellbeing Strategy is a
positive step for citizens of Leicester and will facilitate closer working between
health and social care services, resulting in better outcomes for the most
vulnerable service users in the City.

Philip Parkinson, Interim Chair, Healthwatch Leicester

Leicestershire and Lincolnshire Local Area Team of the NHS
Commissioning Board.

The excellent work of the Director of Public Health, GPs and our providers of NHS
services are a sign that things are improving in Health Services for the City of
Leicester. What this strategy shows is how far we have yet to go in truly improving
health and the outcomes of ill health for all the people in this city. The strategy
does not shirk from asking some awkward questions about what we all will need to
do to change the health of Leicester by using the right mixture of good planning,
good partnership working and excellent delivery of public services. On behalf of the
NHS Commissioning board I endorse the strategy.

David Sharp, Director of the Leicestershire and Lincolnshire Local Area Team of
the NHS Commissioning Board.

Leicestershire Police.

Improving health services for the City of Leicester is key. So far the Director of
Public Health, GPs and NHS services are pulling together and making excellent
progress. This strategy outlines that there is much that can be done and it’s not
afraid to highlight that. I am confident that by working together, sharing
information, ideas and good planning, great improvements can be made. I endorse
this strategy and look forward to supporting it.

Rob Nixon, Chief Superintendent and City Basic Command Unit (BCU)
Commander.

Foreword

(o

I am determined that Leicester’s Health and Wellbeing Board, working with our
partners, will lead a renewed ambition for health in Leicester.

We need to be ambitious for health in Leicester. In our city there are very serious
health challenges. Levels of obesity are too high; too many children suffer tooth
decay; we do not meet targets for physical activity or healthy eating and levels
of serious conditions like heart disease, respiratory conditions and diabetes are
too high. Levels of infant mortality are high. In Leicester there are too many
hospital stays related to alcohol.

Life expectancy for Leicester is below the national average, and the health gap
between affluent and more derived areas is significant. Across the city there can
be a difference of more than nine years for men and five years for women in life
expectancy between the most affluent and least well off areas in Leicester.

With so many factors influencing our health, including housing, diet and the
environment around us, we need to shape a new collaborative approach to
health in the city. This approach must be built on strong partnerships drawing on
all the expertise, experience and ideas from across the NHS community including
the new Clinical Commissioning Group, the city council and many other partners.
This is what the Health and Wellbeing Board will do and this strategy sets out
our initial roadmap of priorities.

The Health and Wellbeing Board will work across five strategic priorities:

« Improving outcomes for children and young people

+ Reducing premature mortality

+ Supporting independence for older people, people with dementia, long-term
conditions and carers

« Improving mental health and emotional resilience

+ Addressing the wider determinants of health through effective use of
resources, partnerships and work with our communities

All of these priorities are important in addressing the challenges we face in
Leicester and in tackling health inequalities. All five priorities are inter-linked and
relate to many more priorities for the health community in the city.

To improve health we will need an approach which is outward looking and which
engages Leicester’'s communities. This is what we will do. Whilst the role of
doctors, clinicians and other health professionals is crucial we need to see
people from many other sectors and organisations, working with residents and
communities, with a real sense of purpose and shared effort to improve health.

I know that the organisations which make up the Health and Wellbeing Board
and other partners share this determination. We want to see health improving
the real progress in closing the health inequalities gap.

I would like to thank everyone who has contributed to this strategy. We now
focus on working to address the priorities and towards improving health across
the city, and together working to make Leicester our healthy city.

2»*; \(}‘\QW‘I'

Rory Palmer
Deputy City Mayor
Chair of the Health and Wellbeing Board



2. Executive summary

Introduction
(Section 4 of the strategy)

This Joint Health and Wellbeing Strategy for Leicester
has been developed by the new Health and Wellbeing
Board and is a key outcome of the Board. The Board
brings together leaders from the health and care
system to work together to improve the health and
wellbeing of their local population and reduce health
inequalities. The Board also includes representation
from patients and the public, via the Local
HealthWatch, and the police. It became a full statutory
Board in April 2013.

The strategy is intended to set a direction of travel for
commissioners in the city, fostering partnership
working to improve health and wellbeing. It underpins
other strategies including the Leicester City Clinical
Commissioning Group (LC CCG) Clinical Commissioning
Strategy, the Adult Social Care Transformation Plan and
the Children and Young People Plan. It also takes into
account the need in the current financial climate to
work together to achieve appropriate economies that
will enable the best outcomes.

Developing the strategy

(Sections 5 and 6)
The vision of the strategy is to:

Work together with communities to improve health
and reduce inequalities, enabling children, adults and
families to enjoy a healthy, safe and fulfilling life.

The strategy is based on the city’s Joint Strategic Needs
Assessment (JSNA) and feedback from local
organisations, patients and the public. The most recent
JSNA for Leicester was published in 2012. The JSNA
shows that Leicester is a city with a younger, diverse
population, with higher levels of deprivation and
significantly worse life expectancy compared to

England. The strategy drills down into some of the
underlying figures and priorities have been chosen
accordingly.

Aim and priorities (Sections 7-12)

The overarching aim of the strategy is to reduce health
inequalities. The five priorities are as follows:

Strategic priority 1: Improve outcomes for

children and young people

- Reduce infant mortality

* Reduce teenage pregnancy

+ Improve readiness for school at age five

+ Promote healthy weight and lifestyles in children and
young people

Strategic priority 2: Reduce premature

mortallty
Reduce smoking and tobacco use

- Increase physical activity and healthy weight

+ Reduce harmful alcohol consumption

« Improve the identification and management of
cardiovascular disease, respiratory disease and
cancer

Strqteglc priority 3: Support independence
+ Support independence for:
people with long term conditions

- older people

- people with dementia

. carers

Strategic priority 4: Improve mental health

and emotional resilience

+ Promote the emotional wellbeing of children and
young people

« Address common mental health problems in adults
and mitigate the risks of mental health problems in
groups who are particularly vulnerable

+ Support people with severe and enduring mental
health needs

Strategic priority 5: focus on the wider
determinants of health through effective
deployment of resources, partnership and

communlty working
« Priority five is a cross-cutting priority - to focus on
tackling the wider and social determinants of health -
the so called causes of the causes of poor health and
health inequalities, and to do this through effective
deployment of resources, partnership and community
working.

Equalities (Section 13)

The strategy’s overall aim is to reduce health
inequalities, and throughout the development of the
strategy the Board has taken account of the duty to have
regard of the equality implications of their decisions.

Engagement (Section 14 and
Appendix A)

The Board has carried out a programme of engagement
in order to ensure appropriate input to the strategy from
the voluntary sector, patients and the public, ‘seldom
heard’ groups and partnership boards.

Measuring progress (Section 15
and Appendix B)

A set of indicators has been developed so that the
progress of the strategy can be measured.

Next steps (Section 16)

Leicester City Clinical Commissioning Group and
Leicester City Council, will both use the strategy to help
them develop their own priorities for the next three
years.

Beyond this, we want other groups working within the
city, in areas such as housing, environment and the arts,
among community groups and the voluntary sector, to
look at how their work can help achieve these strategic
aims and we will put in place a number of measures to
help achieve this.




This Joint Health and Wellbeing Strategy for Leicester
has been developed by the new Health and Wellbeing
Board, which became a full statutory Board in April
2013. The purpose of this Board is to act as a forum for
key leaders from the health and care system to work
together to improve the health and wellbeing of the
local population and reduce health inequalities. It
brings together the City Council with Leicester City
Clinical Commissioning Group (LC CCG) and the NHS
Commissioning Board and other local representation
and has been introduced as a result of the Health and
Social Care Act 2012.

The Board is chaired by the Deputy City Mayor. Members
include councillors, LC CCG, representation from the
NHS Commissioning Board, statutory local authority
officers (director of public health, director of adult social
care, director of children’s services), a representative of
Leicestershire police and a member of the new local
HealthWatch.

The strategy has been developed on the basis of the
city’s Joint Strategic Needs Assessment (JSNA)! and
feedback from local organisations, patients and the
public. The JSNA was developed jointly between
Leicester City Council and LC CCG as the main
commissioners of health and social care services in the
city. The most recent JSNA for Leicester was published
in 2012.

Both the Joint Health and Wellbeing Strategy and the
JSNA underpin other strategies including the LC CCG
Clinical Commissioning Strategy, Adult Social Care
Transformation Plan and Children and Young People
Plan. The priorities set in the Joint Health and Wellbeing
Strategy will be used to inform the yearly operational
plans such as the CCG’s Commissioning Intentions and
Operational Plan. In addition the priorities will inform
any joint commissioning work undertaken by Leicester
City Council and LC CCG.

Ihttp://www.leicester.gov.uk/your-council-services/social-care-
health/jsna/jsna-reports/

The Board recognise that there is a need for
collaboration and active partnership between local
public sector and other bodies and that this will be
driven by having an effective Health and Wellbeing
Board, by sharing information appropriately and by
developing integrated commissioning. They also
recognise the need in the current financial climate to
work together to achieve appropriate economies that
will enable the best outcomes.

(9

4. Our vision and principles

This strategy aims to improve and protect
the health and wellbeing of all those who
live and work in the city of Leicester. We
aim to tackle the gaps caused by
inequalities and achieve real and
measurable improvements in the health and
well-being of residents.

In order to deliver this our vision is to:

Work together with communities to improve health
and reduce inequalities, enabling children, adults and
families to enjoy a healthy, safe and fulfilling life.

The principles on which this strategy is based are:

 Prevention of ill health and early intervention

+ Arelentless focus on reducing health inequalities

« Promoting independence and self-management

+ Harnessing and fostering community engagement
and assets

+ Creating a healthy environment for people to live and
work in

 Focussing on things which can be done by
organisations working together

« Meeting national standards of care and safety and
working collaboratively and proactively to drive up
quality standards through continuous improvement

Our approach is to concentrate on a limited number
of strategic interventions which:

+ Are underpinned by good national and/or
international evidence of effective interventions

« Can be delivered at sufficient scale to achieve the
required impact

+ Are sustainable in the medium and longer term

+ Benefit from partnership working with
complementary inputs from a range of organisations
and sectors

The strategy aims to provide a set of priorities to
influence all areas of life in the city with the aim of
improving health and wellbeing.

Strengthening collaboration

We recognise that we are developing this strategy at a
time of financial constraint. All public bodies are
looking to reduce their spend in line with reduced
budgets or the need to make savings to meet rising
demand. Therefore our aim is to set direction and
aspiration for the city, signposting the areas where we
believe we can make the biggest difference through
joint working and shared focus. The challenge is to
increase the efficiency of what we do, while
maintaining effective and acceptable services. We want
to ensure that the measures we are proposing are
sustainable in the medium or longer term given our
shared resources. We need to work in partnership to
achieve this and to minimise the likelihood of
unintended consequences from a lack of system
coordination or leadership. We accept that this may
require changes to historical funding patterns.

Our partnership working includes collaboration with
both fellow commissioners and provider agencies such
as the local NHS provider trusts, as well as voluntary,
community and private sector bodies.



5. A snapshot of health and
wellbeing in Leicester

Population

The JSNA shows that Leicester is a city with a younger,
diverse population, with higher levels of deprivation and
significantly worse life expectancy compared to
England.

The first release of information from the Census 2011

shows that Leicester has a faster rate of growth and a
larger proportion of children and young people in the

population than in England and Wales generally. The

figures are:

A population of 329,900 (an increase of 16.7% since
2001)

+ 37,200 (11.3%) of the population over the age of 65,
a decrease of some 700 since 2001

Figure 1: Population pyramid

* 24,500 (7.4%) of the population are children under 5,
an increase of 5,200 (27%) since 2001

» The largest increases in the population are in people
aged in their 20s (16,100) and under 5s (5,200)

+ Leicester has a much younger population than
England, with a large proportion under 35 years

« Although there is a decline in the number of people
aged 65-79, the number of people aged over 80 has
increased from 10,400 in 2001 to 11,000 in 2011

» Thereis a large student population

Around 50% of the population is from black and
minority ethnic (BME) groups - most of these are from
South Asian backgrounds. The proportion of people
from BME groups will continue to increase.

it

4% 2%

L Leicester fdales rid-2001
13 Leicestar Famales med-2001

s

£t 4% B

W Leicester Maes 2011
B leicester Remrales 2071

Deprivation in Leicester

Leicester is highly deprived, according to the Index of
Deprivation 2010, ranking 25th most deprived of 326
local authority areas. There is a strong association
between high levels of deprivation and poorer health.
The impact of deprivation on health includes:

« high levels of obesity and tooth decay in children

« high levels of teenage pregnancy

+ adults with worse levels of physical activity and
healthy eating

* high infant mortality

« early death from heart disease, stroke and smoking

« many hospital stays for alcohol problems and self-
harm

« higher than average drug misuse, diabetes,
tuberculosis and broken hips in older people

 higher than average mental illness, homelessness,
and cancer

In this document there are references to wards and
neighbourhoods and in general, to smaller areas of the
city. The purpose of this is to indicate that there is
variation in deprivation within the city, as is shown in
the JSNA.

It should be noted that there is also variation within
wards. The map of deprivation at figure 2 which reflects
deprivation on postcodes (rather than ward averages)
shows the variation within wards and also shows
geographical areas which are open or industrial spaces.




&
]

At i

r

Humtesh
T

icester

-

ionin Le

at

\Y

Nkap of depri
i
e W

o

21 (mask ospevad)

v
Postcodes by quintile of deprivatior

Index of depervation 2010

Figure 2

il

Life expectancy in Leicester

Average life expectancy in Leicester is significantly
lower than the national average; 3.2 years lower in
males and 2.5 years lower in females. Any death below
75 is classified as premature.

+ In the period 1998-10 to 2008-10 life expectancy
increased from 73.3 to 75.4 for men, and 78.8 to 80.1
for women

« BUT there is variation in life expectancy across
Leicester - a gap of nearly 9.5 years for men and 5
years for women between the most deprived and the
least deprived areas of Leicester

« The main contributors to the gap between Leicester
and the national average are deaths from:

- Cardiovascular disease (related to the heart and
circulatory system)

- Respiratory (breathing) disease

- Infant mortality

Diseases and long term conditions

+ More than a quarter (27%) of adults are expected to
suffer from high blood pressure, although only 15%
have been identified by GPs

» Over 7% of adults (17+ years) are currently
registered with diabetes and it is four times more
common among South Asian people

 Cardiovascular disease deaths are the largest
contributor to the life expectancy gap between
Leicester and England

+ These deaths are linked to deprivation, gender and
ethnicity - there are 13 neighbourhoods significantly
worse than the England average

+ Deaths from cancer have been increasing in recent
years.




1
-

Wl Tt F S ' N3
ff BLsEING STRATEGY 1,0

i g -__|'I. ot i
| et O e ) o

\¥ L

Our five strategic priorities are all based on the overall and mitigate the risks of mental health problems in

principle of this strategy - to reduce health inequalities. groups who are particularly vulnerable

They have been chosen by considering: + Support people with severe and enduring mental

+ The key health and wellbeing issues identified health needs
through the JSNA

+ Where we can make the biggest difference, taking Strategic priority 5: focus on the wider
account of evidence ) ) determinants of health through effective

« Feedback from stakeholders, including partner deblo t of t hi d
organisations and the public P ym.en o re'sources, partnership an

« Local and national policy documents on health and community working
social care

Priority five is a cross-cutting priority - to focus on
They are: tackling the wider and social determinants of health -
the so called causes of the causes of poor health and
health inequalities and to do this through effective

Strategic priority 1: Improve outcomes for deployment of resources, partnership and community

ch|ldren‘and young people working.
+ Reduce infant mortality
 Reduce teenage pregnancy . .
« Improve readiness for school at age five Our I’.CI'.tIOI'IClle for choice of the
+ Promote healthy weight and lifestyles in children and pr|or|t|es
young people Within each strategic priority area, we have chosen to
. L. concentrate on a limited number of objectives. The
Strategic priority 2: Reduce premature areas we have chosen are those where we know that
mortality strategic and sustainable development is needed,
+ Reduce smoking and tobacco use where there is good evidence of effective interventions
+ Increase physical activity and healthy weight which can be further developed and built upon and
* Reduce harmful alcohol consumption where improvements depend on contributions from a
+ Improve the identification and management of range of agencies working together to empower and
cardiovascular disease, respiratory disease and enable local communities.
cancer

Some objectives will require the commissioning of
Strategic priority 3: Support independence additional or expanded services with specific additional
- Support independence for: investment l?y one or more qgency.'Others will require
- people with long term conditions us to galvanise action across organisations and
communities using existing resources. In both cases we

- older people T .
- people with dementia hope that the strategic priorities set out here will act as
- carers a compass to point all those who are making decisions

about the wellbeing of Leicester people towards the

Strategic priority 4: Improve mental health areas where they can help to make the most difference.

and emotional rgS|I|ence ' ) The following sections explain our strategic priorities -
+ Promote the emotional wellbeing of children and what we know, what we would like to achieve and what
young people we plan to do.

+ Address common mental health problems in adults

LEICESTER’S HEALTH AND WELLBEING STRATEGY KFilEE




/. Strateqic priority 1:

Improve outcomes for children and young people

Reduce infant mortality

Reduce teenage pregnancy

Improve readiness for school at
age five

Promote healthy weight and
lifestyles in children and young
people

Why we chose this priority

The Marmot Review of Health Inequalities ‘Fair Society,
Healthy Lives’ states:

“Giving every child the best start in life is crucial to
reducing health inequalities across the life course. The
foundations for virtually every aspect of human
development - physical, intellectual and emotional -
are laid in early childhood.”

This presents a particular challenge in Leicester given
the high levels of child and family poverty and indicates
that there must be a greater investment in early
prevention across the city by all partners in the early
years of life and at appropriate stages of development.

To secure this we will focus upon early prevention
activity from conception to age three to improve
outcomes by age five. We will also aim to help all
children and young people to achieve healthy weights
and healthy lifestyles.

We will do this by focusing relentlessly upon our data
about known need, target activity accordingly and
invest in evidence based practice and our communities
of interest across the city to ensure that they too
become active partners in this.

In doing so the Health and Wellbeing Board will have
regard to the recently established City Council ‘core
offer’ of desired activities, interventions and services for
children and their families and the growing body of
evidence about the effectiveness of Sure Start
Children’s Centres.

N\ D

i, e
A h\

2 http://www.instituteofhealthequity.org/projects/fair-society-healthy-lives-the-marmot-review, Executive Summary, p.16

Reduce infant mortality

What we know

The infant mortality (IM) rate for Leicester City in 2009-
2011 was 7.0 deaths in children under 1 per 1000 live
births (95% CI: 5.8-8.4). This is significantly higher than
the England and Wales average of 4.4 per 1000.

Although the actual numbers of deaths are relatively
small (40 deaths in 2011) each one is clearly a tragedy.
Collectively these deaths contribute significantly to the
city’s health inequalities gap with England. Introducing
measures to reduce infant mortality also has the
potential to improve infant health and wellbeing in
general.

What we want to achieve
We would like to see a continual reduction in the infant
mortality rate for Leicester City.

What we plan to do

We will work together to tackle the risk factors for
infant mortality and work with communities by
supporting a Health in Infancy Champion in each
neighbourhood area of the city. We will focus on:

+ Reducing smoking rates in pregnancy and promoting
smoke free homes

Reducing unsafe sleeping

Promoting healthy weight in mothers

Reducing teenage parenthood

Promoting early access to maternity services
Increasing breastfeeding rates

« Improving uptake of immunisations and screening.

Reduce teenage pregnancy

What we know

Leicester has had a higher than average under 18
conception rate for at least the past 10 years. In 2011,
the conception rate showed a significant reduction with
30 conceptions per 1,000 girls aged 15-17, similar to
the national rate of 30.7. This represents a 53.6%
reduction in the under-18 teenage conception rate
(from a 1998 baseline conception rate of 64.6
conceptions per 1,000 females aged 15-17). This has
been a significant success achieved by the Leicester
Teenage Pregnancy and Parenthood Partnership and
needs to be maintained.

There are inequalities across Leicester where nine of the
neighbourhoods have significantly higher rates than the
national average. These neighbourhoods are also
neighbourhoods with other risk factors that contribute
to under 18 conception such as: lower educational
attainment, low aspiration, White ethnicity, young
people whose mothers were teenage mothers. This
reinforces the approach to target services and actions
areas of highest need.

What we want to achieve
A continued reduction in teenage pregnancies, reducing
year on year.

What we plan to do

+ Promote sex and relationship education (SRE)
through the Healthy Schools programme particularly
in target neighbourhoods with higher levels of
pregnancy

« Target vulnerable groups more at risk: including
young people not in education, employment or
training (NEETS), previous pregnancy, high truanting
rates, looked after children, children in need and
those involved in the criminal justice system or with
drug and alcohol interventions

+ Ensure effective tracking and supporting of
vulnerable under 19s

+ Promote the Family Nurse Partnership, which
provides intensive support to young first time
mothers

« Involve young people in devising a communication
campaign integrating teenage pregnancy, sexual
health, substance misuse and domestic violence

* Raise the aspiration and academic achievement of
young people in Leicester

« Ensure young women under 25 have access to
contraception including free Emergency Hormonal
Contraception.

Improve readiness for school
at age five years (physical,
behavioural, emotional and
cognitive)

What we know

Frank Field’s recent report (The Foundation Years:
preventing poor children becoming poor adults) has
‘found overwhelming evidence that children’s life
chances are most heavily predicated on their
development in the first five years of life’. In July 2011
Nottingham MP Graham Allen published a further report
that emphasised the benefits of early intervention
strategies and highlighted a range of evidence-based
interventions that have the potential to turn around the
lives of children and their families.

We know that vocabulary at the age of five has also
been found to be the best predictor of whether children
who experience deprivation are able to escape poverty
in later adult life. Frank Field’s report identifies that
gaps often develop by school age between those
children from poorer backgrounds who do worse
cognitively and behaviourally and those from more
affluent backgrounds.

Early prevention and early intervention in early years,
schools, health and education are therefore recognised
as key strategies in improving health and life outcomes.

Although considerable progress has been made in the
city in narrowing the gap between poorest performing
children and the rest, more needs to be done. Evidence



/. Strategqic priority 1 continued

shows that targeted collaborative work with Sure Start
Children's Centres has resulted in measurable and
tangible gains. The Health and Wellbeing Board will
therefore support city Children's Centres to improve
outcomes through collaborative working.

Currently, 2012 results show that at Foundation Stage
64% of pupils demonstrated that they had a good level
of development (social and literacy skills) and are
therefore ‘Ready for School’. This is an increase of 18%
over the last 3 years of children reaching this measure
which shows the proportion ready for school by the age
of 5.

Leicester’s national ranking remains in the bottom third
of authorities but has improved. We are now ranked
104 out of 152 authorities compared with 134 out of
150in 2010, in terms of readiness for school.

The Leicester figure masks differentials across the city
ranging from 76.2% (Thurnby Lodge) to 53.5% (Rushey
Mead).

What we want to achieve

A continued increase in the number of children under
five years who are ready for school, reducing the
variance across the city and achieving the top quartile
in all reporting areas/neighbourhoods.

What we plan to do

The key things that we have identified to help us to

narrow this gap include:

+ Improving our data systems to enable us to identify
children at risk of achieving poor outcomes and who
have delayed development at an early stage,
enabling us to target learning support to those who
need it most.

« Improving our partnership working to improve the
quality, quantity and take up of family orientated
preventative health and well being initiatives for
children living in our most disadvantaged areas.

Promote healthy weight and
lifestyles in children and young
people

What we know

In reception year 23.8% of children were overweight or
obese and by year 6 this increased to 35.1% (2011/12
data). Within these figures 11.1% were obese in
reception, increasing to 20.5% in year 6.

What we want to achieve

We are aiming by 2020 to bring down the numbers of
children that are obese or overweight to the levels that
existed in 2000 and specifically halt the rising number
of overweight and obese children under 11.

What we plan to do

+ Continue the annual National Child Measurement
Programme (NCMP).

» Review and implement Leicester’s obesity strategy
and the Leicester Sport Partnership Trust’s
implementation plan

+ Support schools to maintain their Healthy Schools
status and achieve an enhanced Healthy Schools
status with a focus on childhood obesity

« Further promote the ‘Leicester Gets Active4Life’
scheme to increase levels of physical activity in those
aged 14 years and over

+ Ongoing support of active travel initiatives to
increase levels of walking and cycling. This includes
children’s cycle training and improving cycle paths to
encourage and support recreational cycling and
commuting

« Build on the range of walking projects that promote
walking to school, walking for health and structured
education to reduce the risks of inactivity

+ Re-commence a children’s weight management
programme for 4 - 14 year olds who are overweight
or obese

+ Explore opportunities to reduce the proliferation of
fast food outlets in the city and work with existing
outlets to make their food healthier.

http://www.instituteofhealthequity.org/projects/fair-society-healthy-lives-the-marmot-review, Executive Summary, p.16

8. Strategqic priority 2:

Reduce premature mortality

Reduce smoking and tobacco use

Increase physical activity and
healthy weight

Reduce harmful alcohol
consumption

Improve the identification and
management of cardiovascular
disease, respiratory disease and
cancer

Why we chose this priority

The length of time that people are expected to live from
birth is a key indicator of overall health of a population.
In Leicester life expectancy is improving, as elsewhere,
but remains significantly worse than England and East
Midlands and the life expectancy gap with England is
widening. Rates of premature death (under 75 years)
are higher than in England, and nearly 70% of all
deaths and 66% of premature deaths are caused by
cardiovascular disease (heart attacks and strokes),
cancers and respiratory disease (2008-2010).

The Leicester JSNA 2012, DPH Annual Reports and
national work on tackling health inequalities indicate a
number of key issues that lie behind the high rates of
premature death in Leicester.

+ Deprivation. Poor population health is driven by
underlying levels of social and economic
disadvantage and deprivation

- Lifestyle. Smoking, lack of physical activity, obesity
and alcohol misuse feature among the leading
causes of the conditions which lead to premature
death in the UK and in Leicester

- Ethnicity. The city’s sizeable South Asian populations
experience consistently higher premature mortality
from coronary heart disease (CHD) by 50% and much
higher rates of other cardiovascular conditions,
particularly of diabetes

- Health care. The offer, access and take up of health
care services, particularly in primary care is critical
but, in Leicester, variable

- Engagement. Improving health cannot be a matter
only of ‘providing interventions’, no matter how
evidence-based. Receptiveness and take up requires
engagement and involvement and a partnership with
communities to improve health together. This may
be through prevention, self-management,
engagement with health care providers or, more
generally, greater empowerment and ownership of
solutions.

One key challenge is combining cost effective public
health interventions with healthcare improvements for
‘at risk’ groups whilst engaging and mobilising
communities into an overall effective programme of the
right scale to have a significant impact.

Generally services are targeted on communities and
groups with the highest prevalence of risk or poorest
health. Those with the worst health tend to share risk
factors (e.g. those who smoke, are more likely than
those who do not also to drink harmfully, report poorer
health, poor diet, low physical activity, and poorer
mental health) suggesting for some higher risk groups
the need for more integrated 'lifestyle' approaches.

We also know that a proportion of people with serious
health conditions have not had this diagnosed by their
GPs. LC CCG has commissioned a piece of work to

(19




8. Strategic priority 2 continued

identify health interventions which would have greatest
impact on the greatest health inequalities in the city.

Reduce smoking and tobacco use

What we know

Smoking is the UK’s biggest killer, cause of health
inequalities, and drain on the NHS. Smoking
significantly contributes to Leicester’s overall poor
health and health inequalities. Reducing smoking is a
strategic priority for Leicester. The vision is for Leicester
to be substantially smoke free by 2035.

Smoking causes 70% of deaths from coronary heart
disease (CHD) and 84% of deaths from lung cancer and
chronic obstructive pulmonary disease in England.

Nationally, smoking prevalence is estimated at 21%
(Health Survey for England 2011). In Leicester, smoking
prevalence in a lifestyle survey of 2010 reported 26% of
all adults as current smokers, with a higher prevalence
in men (29%) than women (22%).

The Leicester survey also showed:

< Smoking prevalence is highest in 25-34 year olds,
reducing as people grow older

« 26% report smoking in their own home

- Among different ethnic groups, White groups have
the highest prevalence of smoking (36%), Asian
British 13% and Black British 11%

+ The west of Leicester shows areas with the highest
smoking rates, corresponding to areas of high
deprivation and a mostly White population

- Of all smokers in Leicester 68% want to give up
smoking, with most (84%) wanting to give up for
health reasons. Of those smokers who have heard of
the Leicester STOP! Smoking service, only 26% have
used it

Smoking levels in pregnancy have shown a general
downward improvement. In 2011-12, 12.7% of women
reported smoking at time of delivery in Leicester, which
is lower than nationally (13.5%). As with smoking levels
generally, there is variation with higher rates of
smoking in pregnancy seen in the west of the city.

What we want to achieve

To continue to reduce smoking in Leicester year on year.

What we plan to do

- Strengthen the strategic leadership to influence
decision-making

+ Reduce exposure to second-hand smoke

- Motivate and help smokers and other users of
tobacco to quit and stay quit

+ Work to prevent young people taking up smoking

+ Use media and communication effectively to inform
about the dangers of smoking and motivate people
to stop or not to start
Reduce the availability and supply of illegal tobacco
and under-age sales

+ Evaluate and monitor our performance as we move
towards our target of smoke-free Leicester

Increase physical activity and
healthy weight

What we know

Nationally, the Health Survey for England 2011 shows
that 25% of the adult population are obese and 62%
either overweight or obese (65% of men and 58% of
women). This equates to approximately 160,000 of the
Leicester adult population being overweight or obese.
Combining weight and waist measurement can be used
to estimate risk of obesity-related long term health
problems such as heart disease and type 2 diabetes.

Nationally, 56% of adults have an increased risk, a high
risk or a very high risk of obesity-related problems,
which equates to at least 146,000 people in Leicester;
This could be an underestimate as higher levels of heart
disease and diabetes are associated with specific
ethnicities such as South Asians.

It is estimated that only a quarter of Leicester adults
(25.8%) eat the recommended 5-a-day fruit and
vegetables compared to an England average of 28.7 %.

Local area estimates for adult participation in sport and
active recreation indicate only 17.7% of adults
undertake the equivalent of 30 minutes on three or
more days a week (Active People Survey: Oct 2010-Oct
2012). The Department of Health recommendation is
150 minutes of physical activity a week.

What we want to achieve

An increase in levels of physical activity in both adults
and children and a reduction in levels of obesity and
overweight.

What we plan to do

- Develop a social marketing programme to raise
awareness of, promote and support healthy lifestyles
Establish a lifestyle referral hub to improve and
maximise access and referrals to healthy lifestyle
services including the Active Lifestyle Scheme (GP
referral), health trainers, physical activity
opportunities and weight management programmes

< 0Ongoing support of active travel initiatives to
increase levels of walking and cycling including adult
cycle training for new cyclists and improving cycle
paths to encourage and support recreational cycling
and commuting

+ Review the service model for adult weight
management.

Reduce harmful alcohol

consumption

What we know

Leicester has alcohol-related death and hospital
admission rates that are significantly higher than the
England average and this is rising.

The alcohol attributable death rate for men in Leicester
is the 8th highest (out of 326 local authority areas) in
England (source Local Alcohol Profiles England (LAPE)
2012)

In the year 2011-12 there were 6,283 alcohol-related
hospital admissions of Leicester City residents, giving a
significantly higher admission rate than nationally.
Rates of alcohol-related hospital admissions vary
geographically across the city. Combining the last three
years data (2008-2011) shows significantly higher rates
in Braunstone Park and Rowley Fields, New Parks and
Castle, Eyres Monsell, Freeman, Westcotes and
Charnwood neighbourhoods.

The annual cost to the NHS in Leicester of alcohol-
related admissions is estimated at over £10 million.

From a lifestyle survey carried out in 2010, just over half
respondents stated they drank alcohol (lower than the
national level). However, over a quarter of respondents
(27%) stated they drank above the recommended
maximum units on a typical day when they were
drinking alcohol.

What we want to achieve

- To have contained the rise in alcohol related hospital
admission and deaths and subsequently reduce
them.

+ To halt the rise in harmful consumption of alcohol.

What we plan to do

 Raise public awareness of the health and wellbeing
risks of excessive alcohol consumption

- Improve social norms with respect to alcohol
consumption, increase understanding of
recommended drinking levels and reduce levels of
excessive alcohol consumption

- To improve access to appropriate, structured and
effective alcohol treatment and support services for
people affected by alcohol misuse

+ To reduce under-age sales of alcohol and subsequent
harm to children and young people

+ Continue to work with community partners to reduce
the level of alcohol related harm across our city

Improve the identification and
clinical management of
cardiovascular disease,
respiratory disease and cancer

What we know

Across Leicester there is variation in primary care
access, take up and outcome, which hampers the
identification of individuals who would benefit from
early identification of disease, or risk of disease and
early treatment or other interventions.

Work to improve the take up of NHS Health Checks
locally is underway but their take up is lower than
estimates of the proportion of the population with a
higher risk of cardiovascular disease. There is lower
identification and treatment of coronary heart disease
by GPs than is expected from estimates of need in the
population. A key indicator of clinical management of
people with diabetes, HbAlc, is statistically significantly
worse than in comparator areas and in England as a
whole. Take up of breast cancer screening is on the
England average. Take up of cervical screening is lower
than England. There are lower referral rates for
diagnosis and treatment than in England generally
which means that people may be getting into
treatment later.



8. Strategic priority 2 continued

Gaps include greater ascertainment of disease, or its
likelihood and improved management and support of
those with identified conditions.

The National Support Team for Health Inequalities (NST
HI) guidance focuses on selected evidence-based
interventions to achieve improvements in life
expectancy in the short term. The guidance suggests
that:

Identifying disease or its likelihood at an earlier stage

improves outcomes.

For example:

« identifying people with a high risk of cardiovascular
disease (CVD) and diabetes.

- increasing public awareness of the signs and
symptoms of early cancers and the ability of GPs to
identify cancers at an early stage and refer to
treatment improves outcomes

Improving the clinical management of existing

conditions improves outcomes.

For example:

- further prevention for people with a previous CVD
event or heart disease

- additional treatment for people with high blood
pressure and no previous CVD event

< anticoagulant therapy for all patients over 65 with
atrial fibrillation

- managing the health care of people with diabetes by
reducing blood sugars (HbA1lc) over 7.5 by one unit

+ improving the management of chronic obstructive
pulmonary disease (COPD)

A focus on ill-health prevention should be maintained.
For example:

+ reducing smoking in pregnancy

+ reducing harmful alcohol consumption

< maintaining focus on smoking cessation clinics

What we want to achieve

« Earlier identification of risks to health and the earlier
provision of preventative care

+ Ensure that there is an increase in the numbers of
patients on relevant disease registers and the
conditions of these patients are being managed
appropriately.

What we plan to do

- Substantially increase the take up of the NHS Health
Check Programme and subsequent management of
those people identified as high risk of a CVD event or
diabetes

+ Ensure that all GP practices have the level of skills
and competencies to more effectively manage
patients with diabetes in the community and the
knowledge and skills in relation to CVD, lifestyle
factors and interventions

+ Increase the numbers screened for cancer

- Improve the identification and referral of patients
with cancers

- Work to improve awareness and implement a patient
education programme

- Design and implement a patient and clinical
education programme

- Improve access to COPD services and disease
management, including the use of telemedicine and
telehealth

9. Strategic priority 3:

Support independence

Support independence for:

People with long term conditions

Older people

People with dementia

e Carers

Why we chose this priority

Supporting independence can have a positive impact on
people’s health and wellbeing.

Access to preventative services is essential to prevent ill
health and to achieve greater independence.
Preventative services can improve the quality of life.
They also prevent problems from arising or worsening,
thus avoiding or delaying the need for intensive and
more costly interventions and services later.
Preventative services can include falls checks, aids and
adaptations, access to community equipment, assistive
technology and appropriate good quality warm housing
and screening for early detection and improved
management of long term conditions.

Local neighbourhood networks are also important for
providing community support. They reduce the need for
statutory services, and enable people to remain within
their community.

Long term conditions

What we know

Long term conditions include diabetes, respiratory
disease (particularly Chronic Obstructive Pulmonary
Disease (COPD) and Cardiovascular Disease (CVD)); they
are more common among people from lower socio-
economic groups and certain Black and Minority Ethnic
(BME) groups. They are major causes of early death,
contributing substantially to the life expectancy gap.
There is a range of data which helps us to estimate the
number of people living with long term conditions and
which are outlined here.

The 2011 census shows that over a quarter (32,447) of
city households in 2011 included a person with a long-
term health problem or disability that limits the
person's day-to-day activities and has lasted, or is
expected to last, at least 12 months. This includes
problems that are related to old age.

The table below shows how many people are registered
with GPs in Leicester as having long term conditions,
and is taken from figures submitted to the NHS Quality
Outcomes Framework 2011-2012. It should be noted
that there is recognition that not all people with long
term conditions have had these conditions registered
by their family doctor. Not all long term conditions
defined in this table are limiting, but many are and
others may become so.

Source: Quality Outcomes Framework 2011-2012.

Number (%) of
people in Leicester

Condition estimated to have
each condition

Chronic Kidney Disease (18+) 8,623 (3%)

Atrial fibrillation 3,260 (0.9%)
Heart failure 2,584 (0.7%)
Dementia 1,616 (0.4%)

Chronic obstructive
pulmonary disease (COPD) 4,853 (1.3%)

High blood pressure 42,707 (11.4%)

Diabetes (17+) 21,138 (7.3%)
Coronary heart disease 10,101 (2.7%)
Cancer 3,754 (1.0%)

Stroke/Transient
ischaemic attack 4,507 (1.2%)

Depression (18+) 30,831 (10.9%)

Mental Health 3,553 (1.0%)

Learning Disability 1,623 (0.6%)




9. Strategic priority 3: continued

What we want to achieve

People with long term conditions will be better
managed and have earlier detection and access to
services.

What we plan to do

- Develop further co-ordinated health and social care
systems for patients with long term conditions
across Leicester

+ Continue to develop and implement the re-ablement
pathway that offers intensive support after hospital
discharge or prevents inappropriate hospital
admissions in patients with long term conditions,
particularly those who are vulnerable

 Continue to support education and training for
clinicians and other staff to improve treatment and
care

+ Develop joint investment plans and integrated
services across health and social care to ensure a co-
ordinated approach to preventative services

+ Review and strengthen self-management and
patient education programmes to support patients in
managing their own conditions

« Improve access to information for people from Black
and Minority Ethnic (BME) communities

+ Review and strengthen psychological support of
people with physical long term conditions and the
management of the physical health of those with
enduring mental health problems

3 -:‘tl:- °

| B

+ Ensure a continued focus on preventing fuel poverty,
particularly given the number of vulnerable
residents in the city.

Older people

What we know

Data from the 2011 census show that there are about
37,200 (11.3%) people aged 65 and over in Leicester.
Around 5,400 of these are aged 85 and over. The
population of older people is projected to continue to
increase over the next 15 years, which will mean
increased demand for statutory services. Although
older people are tending to stay in good health for
much longer in their lives, over 85 is the age when
older people are most likely to be in need of intensive
health and social care services. Evidence also shows
that the risk of dementia increases substantially in
people over 85 years.

Falls are a common problem for older people and often
result in fractures and hospital admissions. This often
results in older people being placed into residential
care and losing their independence. Predicting Older
People Population Information (POPPI) data predicted
that 10,254 people in Leicester over 65 would have a
fallin 2012 (10,726 in 2016). The estimate for hospital

admissions as a result of falls is 819 in 2012, rising to
836in 2016.

There are also increased numbers of older people,
mostly women, caring for others.

What we want to achieve

Older people will have improved access to services and
be better able to maintain their independence. There
will be fewer falls and improved community support to
promote wellbeing. We will promote better end of life
care including greater choice and support for older
people and their families.

What we plan to do

+ To develop co-ordinated health and social care
preventative services and pathways that will enable
older people to retain and maintain their
independence for longer.

« Develop an Older Persons Strategy to support the co-
ordination and delivery of culturally appropriate
services across health, social care, housing and other
relevant organisations, and to ensure provision of
high quality services

 Increased participation of older people in their
neighbourhood to increase social inclusion and
general wellbeing.

People with dementia

What we know

The Joint Leicester, Leicestershire and Rutland (LLR)
Dementia Commissioning Strategy (2011 to 2014)
identified that there are an estimated 3,000 people
with dementia in Leicester, with about 800 new cases
occurring in a year. These are not always registered
with GPs. Most people with dementia are aged 65 and
over, but there are about 70 younger people with
dementia.

Of the people aged over 65 with dementia living in
Leicester we estimate that 60% live in the community
and 40% live in care homes.

The LLR strategy also identified the need for early
diagnosis and improved community based services and
greater support for carers.

What we want to achieve

We will work to improve awareness of the needs of
people with dementia and their families, promote
earlier diagnosis and intervention, and provide a higher
quality of care.

What we plan to do

+ Support the implementation of the Joint LLR
Dementia Strategy

« Develop co-ordinated services across health and
social care, including establishing a memory
assessment pathway and shared care protocol

+ Develop respite and crisis response to prevent
unnecessary hospital admissions.

 Ensure that carers receive appropriate and timely
support through improved access to information and
the implementation of carers’ assessments

+ Ensure re-ablement and intermediate care pathways
are appropriate for people with dementia and
facilitate early discharge back into the community.

« Ensure that people are enabled to live independently
and safely within their own homes by the provision
of appropriate, high quality support services and
assistive technology

 Raise awareness of dementia and the availability of
services within specific communities

+ Ensure that the care delivered in hospitals,
residential and nursing homes is of the highest
quality



9. Strategic priority 3: continued

Carers

What we know

The Joint Leicester, Leicestershire and Rutland (LLR)
Carers Strategy (2012 to 2015) identified that there are
approximately 30,000 people in the city who are carers.
However, only 1,233 Adult Social Care assessments for
carers were carried out in the last year. This highlights
the low level of support given to this group at this time.

The majority of carers are female - in 2001 two thirds
were female but there is evidence this gap is narrowing,
largely due to the rise in older male carers?. Of the
carers, 20% care for 50 hours per week and more than
30% care for between 20 and 50 hours.

One in six carers is an older person, however the
majority are of working age. There are an estimated
1,128 young carers. Projections suggest that by 2022
the number of carers in Leicester will rise to
approximately 38,500. This is a 28% increase in 10
years.

What we want to achieve

We want to ensure that carers’ needs are recognised
and support is given to enable them to continue with
their caring role and to undertake activities beyond
caring to support their own well-being.

What we plan to do

+ Support the implementation of the Joint LLR Carers
Strategy (2012 to 2015)

« Ensure services and support for carers are co-
ordinated across health and social care

 Ensure carers and their needs are identified at an
early stage and action is taken to support them to
retain their independence, such as respite

« Support carers to fulfil their educational and
employment potential

« Ensure that carers can access personalised support

e

to enable them to have a life beyond their caring role
Ensure all carers have access to high quality
information and advice, both early on in their caring
role and throughout their time as a carer

3Figures are based on estimates from the proportions of people receiving carers’ assessments

[ § e |

10. Strategqic priority 4:

Improve mental health and emotional resilience

* Promote the emotional
wellbeing of children and young
people

* Address common mental health
problems in adults and mitigate
the risks of mental health
problems in groups who are
particularly vulnerable

» Support people with severe and
enduring mental health needs

Why we chose this priority

Leicester has high risk factors for poorer mental health
(The Community Mental Health Profile 2013) such as
high rates of deprivation and unemployment, but a
lower than expected proportion of people with
depression. However, there is a significantly higher
proportion of the Leicester population registered with a
mental illness compared to the national or regional
averages and the trend is worsening. By 2030 there is
likely to be a 16% increase in 18-64 year olds in
Leicester with a common mental illness (such as
anxiety or depression) and a 7% increase in those with
more than one co-existing mental illnesses.

Mental illness is the largest single source of burden of
disease in the UK. Almost 23% of the total burden of
disease in the UK is attributable to mental disorders,
compared to 16.2% for cardiovascular disease and
15.9% for cancer (World Health Organisation). Mental
illness can affect anyone of any age and many people

will suffer mental illness over their lifetimes. It is
associated with social exclusion, deprivation, domestic
violence, low income, unemployment, poor housing,
drug and alcohol misuse and low educational
attainment. Mental ill health is also associated with
poor physical health and high risk taking behaviour.
Those who care for a relative or friend are known to
suffer high rates of mental illness. National evidence
suggests that more than 70 per cent of the prison
population have mental health issues. BME groups are,
on average, three times more likely to experience
psychosis than White British ones.

The estimated number of people with anxiety and
depression is about 30,000 and prescriptions for anti-
depressant medications are increasing. Leicester has
higher rates of emergency admission for self-harm and
a high mortality rate for death from suicide and
undetermined injury. It is likely that given the current
economic downturn and the increase in unemployment
in the city, we can expect these figures to increase. Our
priority therefore has a focus on increasing emotional
resilience to mitigate the psychological impact of the
current economic climate.

In addition, the national mental health strategy noted
that ‘Mental health problems can also contribute to
perpetuating cycles of inequality through generations.
However, early interventions, particularly with
vulnerable children and young people, can improve
lifetime health and wellbeing, prevent mental illness
and reduce costs incurred by ill health, unemployment
and crime. Such interventions not only benefit the
individual during their childhood and into adulthood,
but also improve their capacity to parent, so their
children in turn have a reduced risk of mental health
problems and their consequences’.

“No health without mental health: A cross-government mental health outcomes strategy for people of all ages. HM Government 2011.




10. Strategqic priority 4 continued

Promote the emotional wellbeing
of children and young people

What we know

One in ten children aged between five and 16 years has
a mental health problem, and many continue to have
mental health problems into adulthood.

A good start in life and positive parenting promote good
mental health, wellbeing and resilience to adversity
throughout life.

Positive attachment between a young child and their
primary care-giver has been consistently shown to be
important for healthy early development.

Early interventions, particularly with vulnerable children
and young people, or where a lifelong condition such as
Autistic Spectrum Disorder is diagnosed, can improve
lifetime health and wellbeing, prevent mental illness
and reduce costs incurred by ill health, unemployment
and crime.

Children and young people can suffer greatly from the
effects of mental health stigma.

What we want to achieve

We would like to focus on prevention and early
intervention. This can help prevent emotional and
behavioural difficulties, under-attainment at school,
truancy and exclusion, criminal behaviour, drug and
alcohol misuse, teenage pregnancy and the subsequent
need for high cost statutory social care in later life.

We also want to provide intensive support for families
with multiple problems and tackle discrimination and
stigma.

What we plan to do
Undertake a Specific Health Needs Assessment
better to understand the needs of children and
young people in relation to mental health and
emotional resilience

< Improve our knowledge of barriers to early access
including work to tackle the stigma and
discrimination associated with mental health

« Work with communities to empower children and
young people by ensuring services are centred on
their needs and protect their rights

- Improve access to psychological therapies for
children and young people.

Address common mental health
problems in adults and mitigate
the risks of mental health
problems in groups who are

particularly vulnerable

What we know

- Leicester has significantly worse rates of
unemployment among working-age adults and is
above the national average for people aged 16-18
not in employment, education or training. The
availability and quality of an appropriate home has a
substantial impact on mental health. These are
significant risk factors for mental health problems

+ Alcohol and drug misuse (dual diagnosis) are
significantly worse for Leicester than the national
and regional averages. People with mental health
problems are more likely to have poor physical
health and people with poor physical health are
more likely to have mental health problems.
Increased smoking is responsible for most of the
excess mortality of people with severe mental health
problems

+ The health and social care needs of new arrivals to
Leicester are different to other disadvantaged and
vulnerable groups, due to language and cultural
issues with the addition of specific mental and
physical health issues compounded by difficulty
accessing services

- National evidence suggests that more than 70% of
the prison population have mental health issues

What we want to achieve

- Improve the offer, access, take-up and outcomes of
health and social care services

< Reduce lifestyle risk factors for mental health

- Engage and mobilise communities to improve their
own health and wellbeing.

What we plan to do

+ Focus on prevention and grass roots community
work, using a community assets approach which
utilises and recognises the skills and knowledge
within communities

- Work in partnership to improve access to debt
counselling and housing advice for people in
financial crisis or at risk of homelessness

- Improve the diagnosis and treatment of mental
health problems for those with long term physical
conditions and the identification and treatment of
anxiety or depression for those with physical health
problems including medically unexplained
symptoms

- Improve access for people with mental health
problems to public health services that aim to

increase physical activity and healthy eating, stop
smoking and reduce harmful consumption of alcohol
and drugs. These services also need to identify and
refer people to relevant mental health services
where appropriate

+ Increase numbers of drug and alcohol users into
treatment and increase the number of those
successfully completing treatment through the
commissioning of a recovery oriented treatment
system.

- Ensure services are targeted and made accessible to
specific groups such as substance misusers; people
who experience domestic violence; newly arrived
migrants; people in the criminal justice system;
homeless people; people on the autistic spectrum;
people with learning disabilities, and carers.

- Work in partnership with other services within the
city such as cultural services, to deliver activities and
environments which support good mental health

Support people with severe and

enduring mental health needs

What we know

In Leicester there is a significantly higher proportion of
the population registered with a mental illness than in
England and the East Midlands and the trend is
worsening. The estimated number of people in Leicester
with serious and enduring mental illnesses, such as
schizophrenia, bipolar affective disorder and other
psychosis, is about 3400 people. Leicester has higher
rates of emergency admission for self-harm and a high
mortality rate for death from suicide and undetermined
injury.

Speaf“colly
Some black groups have admission rates around
three times higher than average, with some research
indicating that this is an illustration of need

+ Migrant groups and their children are at two to eight
times greater risk of psychosis

< About one in 100 people has a severe mental health
problem

(29

- People with severe mental illnesses die on average
20 years earlier than the general population

What we want to achieve
+ Support commissioning of effective mental health

services that are accessible to all, including the most
disadvantaged and excluded.

Ensure that all people with severe mental health
problems receive high quality care and treatment in
the least restrictive environment, in all settings.

- Ensure equity of access to high-quality, appropriate,

comprehensive services for all groups, including the
most disadvantaged and excluded

What we plan to do

Ensure that services are designed around the needs
of individuals, ensuring appropriate, effective
transition between services when necessary, without
discriminatory, professional, organisation or location
barriers getting in the way

Continue to work to reduce the suicide rate for
Leicester city

Work to promote the public understanding of mental
health and so decrease negative attitudes and
behaviours to people with mental health problems

- Improve access and uptake of mental health services

among homeless people and ensure that such
services are designed with the particular needs of
these groups in mind and that such services take
account of the very diverse range of mental health
needs and dual diagnosis and include an outreach
element.



11. Strateqic priority 5:

Focus on the wider determinants of health through
effective deployment of resources, partnership and

community working

Priority five is a cross-cutting priority - to focus on
tackling the wider and social determinants of health -
the so called causes of the causes of poor health and
health inequalities and to do this through partnership
and community working.

Why we chose this priority

The wider or social determinants of health have been
described as 'the causes of the causes' of poor health.
They are the social, economic and environmental
conditions that influence the health of individuals and
populations. They include where people live, their
housing and education; the jobs they do and the
differences in income within and between communities;
their access to healthcare, transport, healthy food, and
green spaces. They are fundamental to how we live our
lives. They determine the extent to which a person has
the right physical, mental and social resources to
achieve their goals, meet needs and deal with changes
to their circumstances. Health inequalities result from
social inequalities. If we are serious about reducing
health inequalities we must therefore be serious about
taking action across all the social determinants of
health.

These factors and their interaction are represented in
the diagram.

wrok pdarvd
ren

Figure 3: Dahlgren and Whitehead (1991)

The control of these key factors that affect people’s
health are mainly located outside of the NHS. Tackling
these wider determinants therefore means we all need
to work together. Central and local government, the
NHS, the third sector, the education system, the private

sector, individuals, families and communities all have
significant roles and responsibilities for reducing health
inequalities and delivering the interventions needed to
make a difference. The Joint Health and Wellbeing
Strategy gives us the opportunity to do just this. By
having an agreed vision and approach and in
determining agreed priorities we can work together to
achieve real change. This is why we have chosen wider
determinants and partnership and community working
as a cross-cutting theme running right through the
strategy. More than words though, it is fundamental to
how the strategy will be implemented. We need to use
all the assets of our diverse communities to drive the
strategy forward. Only by working together can we
begin to enable ALL the people of Leicester to live long
fulfilling and healthy lives.

What we want to achieve

We want to reduce inequalities in health outcomes
across the city. We recognise that in order to do this we
need to engage people in improving their own health
and we will promote this through real community
engagement and the mobilisation of resources across
all sectors of the city to work in partnership.

What we plan to do

+ Understand local health inequalities and what is
effective in reducing them.

 Explore with health and social care professionals and
wider groupings within the city council, the NHS and
the voluntary and community sector how to work in
a co-ordinated and integrated way to improve health
and wellbeing through effective deployment of
resources, partnership working, engagement and
community development

 Assess the health/health inequality implications of
decisions made that will change service provision to
local residents

+ Encourage local professionals to explore with seldom
heard and community groups how to improve two-
way communication, fostering better relationships
and understanding and leading to improved
perceived access to health and social care services




The Health and Social Care Act 2012 has introduced a
new duty to reduce health inequalities. This will be
done through the NHS Commissioning Board and
clinical commissioning groups, each being under a duty
to have regard to the need to reduce inequalities in
access to and the outcomes of health care.

This new duty sits on top of the existing Public Sector
Equality Duty set out in the Equality Act 2010 upon
which decision makers have a duty to have regard of
the equality implications of their decisions and, where
there are adverse impacts on any group with a shared
protected characteristic, for mitigating actions to be
identified that will reduce or remove identified adverse
impacts.

The approach of the Joint Health and Wellbeing
Strategy is to reduce specific health inequalities in the
city of Leicester based on the evidence contained within
the JSNA and engagement sessions on the proposed
priorities. The health inequalities cited will address
adverse health impacts experienced by local residents.
The suggested actions set out the mitigating actions to
address these adverse impacts. The protected
characteristics of the various target groups covered by
the strategy and action plans will be highlighted in
order to enable decision makers to have due regard of
the equality implications of their decisions.

14. Engagement

(33

The process of engagement

A process of engagement during the development of
the strategy was carried out with a range of groups.
These included several attendances at Voluntary Action
LeicesterShire (VAL) health and social care forum for
professionals from the local voluntary sector (40
people) and two engagement events organised by
Leicester Local Involvement Network (LINk) (76 people),
which a wide range of stakeholders attended, including
members of the LINk and representatives of a number
of voluntary and public sector bodies and seldom heard
groups. The draft strategy was discussed at the City
Partnership Board. Representatives of the board also
met with four further partnership boards and five
seldom heard groups. A questionnaire was circulated
electronically to the Shadow Health and Wellbeing
Board electronic engagement network, MPs, Leicester
City Councillors, the voluntary sector via VAL, LINk
members and individuals in NHS Leicester City’s
membership scheme, and distributed at events. Ninety
five questionnaires were completed, representing
individuals and organisations. Presentations were made
at the CCG’s locality meetings to gather feedback from
GPs.

The data collected showed broad agreement with the
initial principle and priorities, but a number of people
questioned what the definition of ‘vulnerable’ was and
felt the term was too broad. As a result one of the
strategic priorities was changed from ‘meeting the
needs of the most vulnerable in society’ to ‘supporting
independence’.

Further engagement was carried out to gather feedback
on the final draft strategy, and to understand how
individuals and groups can help implement the
strategy. A grid showing the engagement is at
Appendix A.

Additional priorities arising out of

the engagement

Besides the feedback on the suggested priorities, two
issues have stood out from engagement feedback
received as we have developed the strategy.

The first is the need for engagement and community
development. It is clear that no matter how great the
evidence for interventions, if they are not supported by
a fully engaged population, then the benefits will not
be as great as they otherwise would be. The Marmot
Report ‘Fair Society, Healthy Lives’, says, ‘It is vital to
build social capital at a local level to ensure that
policies are both owned by those most affected and are
shaped by their experiences.®

The second is the need for better communication, both
at a one-to-one level between professionals and
patients/service-users and through providing clear,
easy-to-understand information about the services
that are available.

A number of the seldom heard groups we spoke with
during the strategy development discussed their
difficulties with issues such as interpretation and lack
of understanding of services. There was a willingness
for community groups to work with professionals to
address this. This feedback is reflected in Priority 5.

*http://www.instituteofhealthequity.org/projects/fair-society-healthy-lives-the-marmot-review, Executive Summary, p.24



14. Measuring our progress

15. Next steps

(39

We have developed a set of indicators which will help
us measure the progress of the strategy. In doing this,
to avoid confusion we have tried wherever possible to
use indicators that are already being measured by the
Clinical Commissioning Group or within the City Mayor’s
delivery plan. We have also avoided including specific
figures, but rather have shown our starting point and
the progress we expect to be made - the ambition of
the strategy is to improve on current positions for all
our priorities.

We have chosen a relatively small number of indicators
as these will be proxies for the progress of the wider
strategy. We have included earlier in the strategy more
detail about the issues we are addressing and the types
of improvements we will expect to see. There is also
information about some of the geographical areas
where we would like to focus improvement because of
particular need.

The indicators will be monitored annually. They will
show specific progress, but our aim is that the strategy
will be adopted by all parts of the system in Leicester, in
order to maximise improvement in health and
wellbeing across the city. The indicators are at
Appendix B.

This strategy is intended to focus on a set of priorities
which can be adopted by all those in Leicester who can
influence health and wellbeing.

The new LC CCG and Leicester City Council will both use
the strategy to help them develop their own priorities
for the next three years.

Beyond this, we want other groups working within the
city, in areas such as housing, environment and the
arts, among community groups and the voluntary
sector, to look at how their work can help achieve our
aims.

To help with this, we will:

 Publicise the strategy widely, meeting with key
decision-making and community groups

» Work jointly to produce an implementation plan for
each of the priorities

+ Continue the engagement we have begun in the
development of this strategy, listening to
stakeholders, patients and the public to understand
what is working and what is not working

+ Monitor the progress of the priorities through
updates to the Health and Wellbeing Board from the
CCG and the City Council and other relevant bodies

« Revisit and refresh the strategy after a year.




Appendix A: summary of engagement

Leicester City Shadow Health and Wellbeing Board
log of engagement about the Joint Health and
Wellbeing Strategy

Event
29 Feb 2012 Briefing to Stronger Communities Partnership 10
20 Mar 2012 Presentation update to VAL Health and Social Care Forum 40
28 June 2012 Meet with Andrew Smith from Enterprise Partnership Board 1
3 July 2012 VAL Health & Social Care forum 40
4 July 2012 Link to questionnaire sent to 4706 members of the
Leicester City NHS membership scheme (2000) 6706
4 July 2012 Link to questionnaire sent to electronic network, MPs (3), 3808 +
Leicester City Councillors (55), Voluntary Sector(3750), LINk members members
5 July 2012 Presentation at the Stronger Communities Board 11
10 July 2012 Presentation at the Safer Communities Board 16
12 July 2012 LINk HealthWatch stakeholder workshop 76
16 July 2012 Somalian Response Centre (men) 12
17 July 2012 Somalian Response Centre (women) 12
26 July 2012 Presentation at the Children’s Trust Board meeting 19
26 July 2012 Presentation at the Culture Partnership Board 9
30 July 2012 Meeting at Chinese Community Centre 14
1 Aug 2012 Presentation to Connexions meeting 8
20 Aug 2012 Presentation at African Caribbean Centre 26
22 Aug 2012 LPCG Locality Meeting 17
27 Sep 2012 City Central CCG Locality Meeting 25
4 Oct 2012 Presentation at the Sports Partnership Board (postponed from 19 July) 16
1 Nov 2012 City Partnership Board 27
6 Nov 2012 VAL Health & Social Care Forum c. 40
14 Jan 2013 LINk follow-up engagement event 25
14 Jan 2013 Local Dental Committee 20
16 Jan 2013 Public Health Network c.50
17 Jan 2013 Follow up presentation at the Children’s Trust 19




LEICESTER’S JOINT HEALTH AND WELLBEING STRATEGY i1

BT LEICESTER’S JOINT HEALTH AND WELLBEING STRATEGY

Aurpanw Tumuepl =i
AL T e IR SR I SR [ USSR
LB TS0 S F A 1R AjlapLadapui

withdn g prGe e G e A R EL R Rl

R - (T1-HOOT U1 PRY AaAmi 1)l

hEAS AT - AITREAL Lea-lg

STES B ST HAIDS YN CTY (EIUHLY Aappuoaas S gz Supyl Sreareas yuem (e Al punsas
LR b IED WO pSE N ns (e vond - ZTTTIE SIE | FER RN DU SMORLS DUTEEMA 1L IR LIEILTD U] SRR IS UG st
oqEapu) Fagioding
L hEormsa
|38} NOA PP SHOTILE AWGY B340, La 1sanh aecs Manue Ly
YFTT ITAIT0E|  aysod or-p Huoos spuapuodsay o aBerusosed syl | e yum 3jdoad - Jupag-|Em pelaodar-)ag
oy el jusaceal Tenpy uoaLan SO L) PR

Sy k) | e P gt (I ik o

Joj a8 ko uotiad Sy F00E URIEENEIR
M PRS00 J0 PREPIEUS USRS ARy A3
PRI e cps RIGMRD JO D R40g0d aY)

FL
24005 HOIss0d € 0 0 27 - 0T BOOT VI PiRY A=iuns 0]k

tiddng pue JusmusiE e s ps aanedisied
(e A sy s e e Caaednea)
SUPFLEICH X [H] 11_._._“_1._: LR g T

‘A hﬂi:r H P ] PR R ST U I
By e suc rerk s (0 SucUs) [Enpapug
S3IU UL, A 4 P LT Sl GOICS B 5 Ry

A S - SN Ui 1S

2§ = AEnk paucdal e

HCE] Bl 0] E R a1y Buipems

LR

10 RpgEnh SuisGidice FuB asaspuadapu B jue b

e AnEnb Baadusg
R s adaEul Fuju i v oaes

] SRR §TAPTOT Wil sryan)e ag ol Aaan| e gsculap-scd o trauanpega s e ey sEcuie-siod o ssuan nays - EuBMIBg |

o piaar sed §Eos - rninne

(=0T ] _.E__”_n.__._n_un.

H2ad il Sp0) BaE U {aa0 DT 55 palc) usinndod|
2oad Japjo §0 AT a6 IO IWouED sy)

Crweh ) Fung s Bainn pue (B jusgise o e
e g peEet apbkand app 0 sete e el
FEUCHIRE- (27K J0 SRR BUE 5 SCIRIMUNL

i drd ipen po s vopepod syl o sapee
LK SIED BN S (e i o ey ..__-En.._
O UGIELUDE 2 AqUrs ] SEagal aarrEau )

LE BT [ITHH

300307 Jod aue Fumims s epuspsos

7 sead gl ) ey AuEasd E |
PRI SAna puR G5 pa b agsced s

BHER - LN fLT T

“Jepdsoy

L SR QIS D dj3gL §0 3103 gy Jage shep 15 Jupgas
SIALPE SRS AR JARR R 0 RSy G1R FITR
) HLUOL E IR Sy RS S e __.l___._.r_.:.___.._
T U 0 FE G, B R ) Rl E B pRpu)
B LA 3R S FU B e Al

TRUL UGIAETUL 10D 2 i ue e ey ey Basncy
Ao B a8 0 Sy A Burkinw a3 [enuaapsr;
B 2T M ALY G 1AL i e s Apumann s

1t apnce v aafiegap sdosd dapg o gy

IO AIES LG FT Ry B |

Lasam g g (endiay way slafyeap
sEpe wREE i BRI T (1 A g |

|aavaa pue ga) spdoad tapE jo wonsedang |

SIpEaEal Supucddng

WE ST T

RIS PR AT

TR SR D ST R O B U e

SE "W AR AU n Ay 0 sleiuased £ ie Swmaas 0
PR T e B BEaa ) el siamds Jaya
e e, = Busesnm sasies o ssg e ey |

I B L UL PR AR
AU LI T Py R pRT M)
IO Rmmadin pag Buweon e

WFT IR (ETITIOE

Jusitipus s afeusa
oy A sy = s pue g eeg Bussned aptoad

g peooddirs, aur oy oy pues wae] Bocy s
10 300 HUAEY F2 S04a5WaYL JUYAp Ty apdood o B

LR LD B Y U SR
Uy U Ry L3 | duon yaa 2jdoag

UnpEend U= 1500

BT'EG “Fu3 %E 6 DR TTTIOE

Ui an

[BEa00] s
TE Cyiaquasdes T Fujpatasd Sy3 4 UOHes PR
BT FRY AR D4 0400 G Sy 100 po 8

S0jEIpul pean

UITUPRIES N 10400

(SHY) 5530 10 NG 05T ) (sylucs T Baparasd
1|_r ___ ﬂl __._-.—..‘.En HL ﬁ.:lh AR R H ___"_"—.—._ _-ﬁ.__ 1__._

ALK L S H e LFE L m.:..L:Ih_I__!...._I._.I.._._o_.:E.__.-

LEEER LIS wuliwie s podgr po jussie i (40
ST} SYLUOW ST ShojAsd U TR A0 WEE S —

V[RCH YEE] Ag) WD O SalaR)p g sy yed jo w
=% T i P g 1EEnE paaR 0 s aBEuBw s a0

(o= By vy sgarepe o) £LSE R 2 AR Ias 30y

[DsAR i R e uniiapsad
AP A g o el aaace o) sl arc ieal g

U i .Eﬂ.__-.—_lﬂs.n JECTLEIACT JiI .l.md_.l.-..n-ﬂ_

e R e T e T e o Ll e

Prrn A e cysa oo epEked paguan g Slejuaking

[TETTHL A HIT
i Auiss s e e asioed a0 e

unne ol Qe T e PRl ) U aErarla
RICHRRIL P R | O o £REG 1/ ITOT

TS =0 w5
U D B R 0 RORy U RELpE | B

ML Pl ey

Wl LT STT 20 TE 30

LS LT T TR G B o TR L= ST T

O TPmE] 18 BG) SALAUATE USRI 18 0 1R
sanze pue Lods o avedpajued oge vopepidad
liass pue g ol apoE sy po sBeTueesd ay )

dprape s o sasa)
PopUB e u Bunesdeeed sy

Brii LM A DEgainaagg
BRI R O AR ajAIERT] IRLERIE)

Animurt MIURRITE Qijs, 53 PR (0 5

artiA AR AanyiuE ey

ey pu) Benanddng

10 LoiIE o | wr ekl
UNRE OOOAGOT 490 SRk ESTT SRGANG SOST SET/ITOE]  DOOMOL 4 SHank Buncems f g |G Bgang Bal Anu a o aess Bupows
R
BETE ‘8222 GOEET PR ETTTOT
YL e g0 30 [0 ) (BJE paegn pdoad |G ssany SHITYD SHN Zuprey H30od jO Jauny

unfjsod WA S0

WETE AJawE WL
sy ARG 0y JeRR s £ LT

uopmyan

[ ETTET R I
WD B DU WRIRIYF 3 AR U pU Laseaea
PR ] A PR, LEELEE 1 3 ety Lt e o g

b iy speaa) 0E
L RIS e P R S ] U
Bomigh 11 sepun seIppys Ui Ausego Eanpey

L T

sy g akdh S 4L DOO'L
e gl dREA R JREan U SUndatun o e

10 e JEa SR U AR RO

WL AT ERSIRE

e b= Al

Gy sl Bame e o smem e Buimcuee o = ey

hasnfant m Aurgmuyg

REDPG FTIIDAT

YUK JOME S¥EaM § -3 1T AUIPDISTY S0 0 5

Sy - 12 BUIpaaER A

| pu| Besaddng|

alICIL
2| Ay, BRIy I s s ASesay pue (E0E
TumsriapE g0 o) sodrE e ey L) 1R PR s aiEs

51 0 S ABTIE UG|ICRU MO 10 JELL MRS SRS ETOE

(3t e pmiicpanar) e iy
HenEuR] pUR CEIE FLIMULET SRS Banaees hpeg
e peL e g TR (e Ny peec e JG paa st

“EuHEWT U] 1 ST DU UDEN| Y3 o aFeIuuac 3y

5 afle I |DOYIS B0 TN peTY

unyyisod 1329 S0

uopauyan

Jojeijpu] pran

2ydoad Tunosk PUe SROpYIYD S} 500N DN b

ERRHPUY AT-ETOZ Adejeils DURGE s PRUE |RaH JUI0T 1350t @ Mpueddy



Appendix B

Leicester
City Council

LEICESTER CITY HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD
11 July 2013

The Leicester, Leicestershire and Rutland Healthcare
Subject: Community response to the Francis Report

Presented to the Health Deb Watson
and Wellbeing Board by:
Author: Liz Rowbotham

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY:

The Clinical Collaborative Interface Group (CCIG), which brings together the clinical
leaders from the clinical commissioning groups, the Leicestershire Partnership Trust ,
the University Hospitals of Leicester and NHS England local area team, has reviewed
the Francis Report about mid-Staffordshire and produced some initial
recommendations.

Six cross-cutting themes have emerged: Transparency, Listening, Walking the floors,
Saving more lives, Safe Staffing levels and Targeted improvement.

A number of priorities for a first phase of joint work have been identified, and there
will be an update in October making it clear how all parts of the system are
responding to the Francis Report. Each organisation has also agreed organisation-
specific areas for priority.

RECOMMENDATIONS:

The Health and Wellbeing Board is requested to:

e receive assurance on the work underway to progress the
recommendations from the Francis report

e support the priorities of the work as identified in this paper

e receive a further update in October 2013 on the progress achieved.



The Leicester, Leicestershire and Rutland Healthcare Community response to

1.

the Francis Report
Report on behalf of the CCIG and LLR NHS Chief Officers, June 2013

Introduction

1.1 On 6 February, Robert Francis QC published his report and
recommendations following the public enquiry into the failings in the Mid
Staffordshire NHS Foundation Trust and the failings of other organisations
charged with the responsibility to regulate, monitor and assure the care provided
by the Trust.

1.2 The government published its initial response at the end of March, including
highlighting those areas where further work had been commissioned and
expected to report by the autumn.

1.3 Within Leicester, Leicestershire and Rutland (LLR) the Clinical Collaborative
Interface Group (CCIG) undertook an initial review of the report and then
requested LLR chief officers to ensure that an appropriate response of the LLR
healthcare community was made.

Key Findings of the Francis Report

2.1 The Public Inquiry report determined that the failings at the trust were
primarily caused by a serious failure on the part of a provider trust Board. It did
not listen sufficiently to its patients and staff or ensure the correction of
deficiencies brought to the trust’s attention. Above all, it failed to tackle an
insidious negative culture involving a tolerance of poor standards and a
disengagement from managerial and leadership responsibilities.

2.2 This failure was in part the consequence of allowing a focus on reaching
national access targets, achieving financial balance and seeking Foundation
Trust status to be at the cost of delivering acceptable standards of care.

2.3 The report also concluded that the NHS system included many checks and
balances and organizations which should have prevented serious systemic failure
of this sort, but that this did not occur. In short, the system which ought to have
picked up and dealt with a deficiency of this scale failed in its primary duty to
protect patients and maintain confidence in the healthcare system.

2.4 The report concluded that the extent of the failure of the system suggests that
a fundamental culture change is needed. This does not require a root and branch
reorganization, the system has had many of those, but it requires changes which
can largely be implemented within the system that has now been created by the
new reforms.

2.5 The Inquiry Report identified numerous warning signs which could and should
have alerted the system to the problems developing at the trust.



3. CCIG initial response

3.1 The CCIG, which brings together the clinical leaders from the clinical
commissioning groups, the Leicestershire Partnership Trust , the University
Hospitals of Leicester and NHS England local area team, discussed the Francis
Report at its meeting in March. The discussions were positive and constructive in
agreeing a way forward and it was agreed that there would be a number of
actions:

- there should be a united public facing statement made , in addition
to each organisations own specific response and agreement on a
common set of actions, that could be undertaken in partnership

- sharing of those actions which would be undertaken by individual
organisations, in recognition of the differing roles and purpose of each
organisation in the LLR community.

3.2 The initial proposals for actions to be delivered in partnership included:

-a coherent system across LLR should be established for the
collection of soft intelligence on patient care.

-there should be an emphasis on clinical leadership and coherent
teamwork.

-the “right place, right care “programme should be extended to primary
care

-an effective single front door to the Emergency Department at UHL
NHS Trust made a high priority.

3.3 In addition there was a significant consideration to the concept of the Duty of
Candour, and in particular how organisations could work to encourage staff to
share their concerns.

4. The LLR commitment

4.1 The clinical and managerial leaders of the Leicester, Leicestershire and
Rutland NHS community are united in the commitment that they will not allow
the focus on quality and safety, which the Francis report has so effectively
highlighted , to be disregarded , diluted or ignored ; and as a consequence of
that commitment they will report back in public and as a local health system in
October 2013 on progress on the areas identified as joint and individual
priorities.

5. The common themes

5.1 Since the initial CCIG meeting to discuss the Francis report in March, each of
the LLR organisations have spent time listening to staff, patients and
stakeholders views. The initial proposed joint areas have been considered and
expanded and as a consequence, six common themes have emerged on what
the priorities should be to improve our services and to safeguard against the
issues highlighted in Mid Staffordshire.

5.2 These 6 areas are:
¢ Transparency -Candour, openness and whistle blowing: a wide ranging
set of actions that involve public Boards, Quality Accounts, patient and



public engagement as well as responsibilities on individuals and between
organisations.

e Listening: all organisations have recognised and recommitted to the
principles of listening to patients, staff and other stakeholders who have
the critical role of “telling it as it is”.

¢ Walking the floors: Providers, and commissioners, have recognised the
need to spend more time in face to face observation of wards,
departments and surgeries. This intelligence will play a vital role in
supplementing the variety of metrics that are in place to measure quality
and provide an early warning if care is or has the potential to be unsafe or
of a poor standard.

e Saving more lives: by working together to redesign care pathways and
by providing better care out of hours and at weekends we will save more
lives.

o Safe Staffing levels: all providers are reassessing staffing levels in
critical areas to ensure that they are safe.

o Targeted improvement: where areas are found to be struggling to
sustain standards of care, support will be given, improvement plans
made clear and progress monitored

5.3 These 6 areas of focus do not represent the entirety of the local NHS
response to the Francis Report; they are the broad crosscutting themes that have
emerged from all organisations.

5.4 In sharing the priorities identified by the CCIG it is apparent that considerable
other cross LLR work is also being undertaken. The nursing leads for all
organisations are coordinating specific areas of improvements related to the
Compassion in Practice programme. A priority in this the role of healthcare
assistants and how their standards of care can be assured.

5.5 In addition the actions related to other organisations are not reflected within
this paper e.g. the role of Healthwatch locally in strengthening the influence of the
patient’s voice.

5.6 The October update will need to make clear how all parts of the system are
responding to the Francis Report recommendations.

. The first phase of areas of joint work to be addressed

6.1 The LLR NHS chief officers asked for those areas where working in
partnership was a priority and the following areas were identified:

e “Duty of Candour”, to establish a common definition and what it means as
an LLR wide community in the way we work together.
Proposed leads (and Forum): Chief Executives and Medical Directors
(CCIG)

¢ In light of the above, a refresh and reaffirmation of our shared values and
how these will be enacted.
Proposed leads (and Forum): Chief Executives and Medical Directors
(Better Care Together Programme Board)

e The development of models for clinical leadership across LLR
Proposed leads (and Forum): Medical Directors (CCIG)



7. Organisation specific priorities

7.1 Each organisation has their own individual work programmes linked to the
Francis recommendations and have confirmed their priorities.

Leicestershire Partnership Trust:-has prioritised leadership
programmes for multiple levels in the organisation; review of staffing
levels for all inpatient areas with additional investment; Listening into
Action programme for improving staff engagement; developing a culture
for staff to report concerns i.e. transparency not “whistle blowing”;
increased transparency of reporting at Board meetings; a refresh of the
Quality Strategy; and external assurance on the Quality Governance
Framework.

University Hospitals of Leicester:-has prioritised Listening into Action
programme for staff engagement; further work on the care of the elderly
work programme; ongoing analysis to understand mortality information
especially out of hours and weekends; special support measures to some
clinical areas from corporate teams; and the introduction of
supernumerary status for ward managers.

Leicester City CCG:- has prioritised listening and engagement with
patients and the public, with explicit feedback and response; listening to
professionals involved in care delivery, with explicit feedback and
response; having robust approaches to monitoring and measuring the
quality of services, including visits to providers and via the contractual
process.

East Leicestershire and Rutland CCG: - has prioritised a refresh of the
Involvement and Engagement Strategy and development of a patients
forum; a GP champion to lead a work programme to raise concerns and
provide feedback from primary care (a relaunch of the system currently in
place but inconsistently used); review and strengthening of all provider
contracts including out of county providers; review of the structure and
focus of quality visits; and setting up a professional forum for practice
nurses.

West Leicestershire CCG:- has prioritised improved mechanism for
capturing and responding to the patient voice; strengthening the
mechanisms for GPs to raise concerns, receive feedback, monitor themes
and provide feedback; a review of the quality schedules to include
strengthening of the standards and data streams; sharing information with
partners; and review of the structure and focus of quality visits.

NHS England local area team for Leicestershire and Lincolnshire :-
has prioritised clear mechanisms for input into Serious Incident
monitoring; all clinicians to receive a communication regarding reporting
of safety and quality concerns; establishment of the quality surveillance
group; and a focus of the maintenance of staff moral across all
organisations.

8. Timeline for Progress

8.1 Given the above identified areas, these will now be monitored through the
Forums set out in Section 5 above. CCIG will oversee coordination of the
publication of a further report in October, and will be meeting in September to
consider progress to date on the joint and individual priorities.



9. Recommendations

9.1 The Boards of each of the Leicester Leicestershire and Rutland NHS
organisations are asked to:
-receive assurance on the work underway to progress the recommendations

from the Francis report
-support the priorities of the work as identified in this paper
-receive a further update in October 2013 on the progress achieved.



Appendix C

Leicester
City Council

LEICESTER CITY HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD
11 July 2013

Subject: LLR Health Protection Board

Presented to the Health Deb Watson
and Wellbeing Board by:
Author: Ilvan Browne

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY: Leicester, Leicestershire and Rutland’s Health Protection
Board has met for the first time and has made some small amendments to its Terms
of Reference. It will meet quarterly.

RECOMMENDATIONS:

The Health and Wellbeing Board is requested to: note the report.



Briefing note for LLR Health and Wellbeing Boards - June 2013: Changes to
Terms of Reference (ToR) for the Health Protection Board

At its inaugural meeting on 5 June 2013, the Health Protection Board made a number
of small changes to the ToR that had previously been ratified by the three Health
and Wellbeing Boards for Leicester City, Leicestershire and Rutland. These changes
are:
¢ The Board agreed to extend an invitation to David Sharpe, for NHS
England Area Team to cover its commissioning role. It was also agreed
that additional members may be invited where necessary by full
agreement of the Board.

¢ Pandemic influenza should be out of scope, replaced by seasonal
influenza.

o The paragraph covering escalation of issues should be simplified to state
‘CEOs of relevant organisations’ rather than listing them.

¢ The Board is a sub-group, rather than sub-committee of the Health and
Wellbeing Boards.

The Board will meet quarterly at Leicestershire County Hall and meetings will last for
a maximum of two hours. The next three meetings for this year will be booked in
advance and members notified as soon as possible.



Appendix D

From Norman Lamb MP DH ‘ [:) 8[) Gi”fm an
Minister of State for Care and Support 3 / £ .
of Health
Richmond H
To: Chairs, Health and Wellbeing Boards 79 Whitehall
Cc: Council Leaders and Chief Executives éf,{]f:"z s

Chairs and Chief Operating Officers, GGCs T

iy \
)
i |

f€ar (Alea e
Delivery of the Winterbourne View Concordat and review commitments

I am writing to you at the start of your taking on your statutory functions to
stress the pivotal local leadership role that Health and Wellbeing Boards can play
in delivering the commitments made in the Winterbourne View Concordat’
which represents a commitment by over 50 organisations across the sector —
including the Local Government Association, NHS England, the NHS
Confederation, Royal Colleges and third sector organisations — to reform how
care is provided to people with learning disabilities or autism who also have
mental health conditions or behaviours viewed as challenging. There is
widespread agreement across the sector that the care of this group of vulnerable
people requires fundamental change.

The abuse of people at Winterbourne View hospital was horrifying. For too long
and in too many cases this group of people received poor quality and
inappropriate care. We know there are examples of good practice. But we also
know that too many people are ending up in hospital unnecessarily and they are
staying there for too long,.

NHS England, NHS Clinical Commissioners, the Local Government
Association, the Association of Directors of Adult Social Services and the
Association of Directors of Children’s Services each committed to working
collaboratively with CCGs and Local Authorities to achieve a number of
objectives by 1 June 2014, including that from April 2013, health and care
commissioners will set out:

“a joint strategic plan to commission the range of local health,
housing and care support services to meet the needs of children,
young people and adults with challenging behaviour in their area.

! https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment _data/file/127312/Concordat.pdf.pdf




'DH Y Department
" of Health

This could be undertaken through the health and wellbeing board
and could be considered as part of the local Joint Strategic Needs
Assessment and Joint Health and Wellbeing Strategy (JHWS)

process;

o The strong presumption will be in favour of supporting this
with pooled budget arrangements with local commissioners
offering justification where this is not done.

o We will promote and facilitate joint and collaborative
commissioning by local authorities and CCGs to support
these objectives.

Health and wellbeing boards have an opportunity through their role in agreeing
the CCG and Local Authority Joint Plans to challenge the level of ambition in
the plan and ensure that the right clinical and managerial leadership and
infrastructure is in place to deliver the co-produced plan.

Health and wellbeing boards will, no doubt, also want to take an active interest
in how far the other commitments in the Concordat, particularly those relating to
care reviews having been completed by June 2013, have been achieved, “as well
as satlsfylng themselves that commissioners are Workmg across the health and
social care system to provide care and support which does not require people to
live in inappropriate institutional settings.

It will only be through creative local joint commissioning and pooled budgets
working with people who use services, their families, advocacy organisations
and carers and other stakeholders (including providers) that we will deliver more
joined-up services from the NHS and local councils in the future and see real
change for this very vulnerable group.

Health and wellbeing boards are well placed to agree when a pooled budget will
be established (if not already) and how it will promote the delivery of integrated
care — care that is coordinated and personalised around the needs of individuals;
which is closer to home and which will lead to a dramatic reduction in the
number of inpatient placements and the closure of some large in-patient settings.

The Department of Health has supported the establishment of an NHS England
and Local Government Association-led Winterbourne View Joint Improvement
Board. This Board will be working closely with a range of partners to develop
and implement a sector-led improvement programme working with local health
and social care communities to deliver real and lasting change in the support and



—==1y

D}-ﬁ} Department
. of Health

care for people with learning disabilities or autism who also have mental health
conditions or behaviours viewed as challenging. It will shortly be in touch with
you separately to take stock of progress in your area so that any appropriate level
of support can be arranged.

Due to the very public nature of these failures in care, I am sure that you will
want to ensure that your health and wellbeing board is able to provide
transparent public information and assurance on progress locally.

Further information about the work of the improvement programme, including a
recently issued framework for conducting reviews of care locally, is available on
the LGA website. If you have any innovative practice to share, or views on how
the programme can be designed and developed to ensure rapid progress and real
and lasting change, please contact the programme chair via -
Chris.Bull@local.gov.uk B

/z,_(m/

NORMAN LAMB

Made W« Cocerad v bao Semrne,

trered A L«p‘..(l«»»-‘r Sa |



This page is left blank intentionally.



Appendix D1

Leicester
City Council

LEICESTER CITY HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD
11 July 2013

. Leicester City Winterbourne View local stocktake
Subject:

Presented to the Health Deb Watson
and Wellbeing Board by:

Author: Yasmin Surti

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY: Winterbourne View was a private hospital providing care
and support to people with learning disabilities/autism who displayed challenging
behaviour or serious mental health issues. As a result of poor commissioning and the
lack of regular and robust reviewing of these “in patients”, their complaints went
unheard and they suffered horrific abuse at the hands of staff, as highlighted in a
BBC Panorama expose.

The Health Minister, Norman Lamb MP, has requested that partners on Health and
Wellbeing Boards provide a stocktake of local progress following the Winterbourne
View Concordat. Via the Chair, they have been asked to provide assurance on local
planning to deliver real and lasting positive change for this group of vulnerable
people.

Local Progress to date:

¢ Reviews have been carried out for all individuals concerned and there is a
timeline identified for moving on/discharge for each person.

o There is a shared understanding of the current care arrangements for the 17
adults and 2 children affected and the register is being updated to ensure the
dataset reflects the requirements of the Winterbourne Joint Improvement
Programme.

o The Joint Commissioning Strategies for Learning Disabilities and for Mental
Health are being refreshed and will include the actions from the Winterbourne
Joint Improvement Programme.

o The Winterbourne Working Group, formerly the “Six Lives” group, will ensure
operational delivery of the programme.

e Governance arrangements have been established to ensure appropriate
monitoring of the programme and to ensure people with a learning
disability/autism who display challenging behaviour or serious mental health
issues are appropriately supported and cared for.

RECOMMENDATIONS: The Health and Wellbeing Board is requested to: note the
letter from Norman Lamb and the stocktake report which was submitted to the
Winterbourne View Joint Improvement Board on 5" July 2013.



This page is left blank intentionally.



Local 18 NHS

Government

Association Eﬂ g.,a ﬂd

Winterbourne View Joint Improvement Programme

Initial Stocktake of Progress against key Winterbourne View Concordat Commitment

The Winterbourne View Joint Improvement Programme is asking local areas to complete a stocktake of progress against the commitments made
nationally that should lead to all individuals receiving personalised care and support in appropriate community settings no later than 1 June 2014.

The purpose of the stocktake is to enable local areas to assess their progress and for that to be shared nationally. The stocktake is also intended to
enable local areas to identify what help and assistance they require from the Joint Improvement Programme and to help identify where resources can
best be targeted.

The sharing of good practice is also an expected outcome. Please mark on your return if you have good practice examples and attach further details.

This document follows the recent letter from Norman Lamb, Minister of State regarding the role of HWBB and the stocktake will provide a local assurance
tool for your HWBB.

While this stocktake is specific to Winterbourne View, it will feed directly into the CCG Assurance requirements and the soon to be published joint
Strategic Assessment Framework (SAF). Information compiled here will support that process.

This stocktake can only successfully be delivered through local partnerships. The programme is asking local authorities to lead this process given their
leadership role through Health and Well Being Boards but responses need to be developed with local partners, including CCGs, and shared with He
and Wellbeing Boards.

The deadline for this completed stocktake is Friday 5 July. Any queries or final responses should be sent to Sarah.Brown@local.gov.uk

An easy read version is available on the LGA website

May 2013

2d Xipuadady

1 Winterbourne View Local Stocktake — Leicester City



Winterbourne View Local Stocktake June 2013

1. Models of partnership

Assessment of current position evidence of
work and issues arising

1.1 Are you establishing local arrangements for joint delivery of this 1.1 We are developing a local action plan

programme between the Local Authority and the CCG(s).

which will be overseen by established
governance structures. Additionally we are
liaising with our partner authorities in
Leicestershire and Rutland and the respective
CCGs to develop specific joint actions and
closer working arrangements.

1.2 Are other key partners working with you to support this; if so, who. 1.2 The Six Lives working group which
(Please comment on housing, specialist commissioning & providers). includes representatives from Adult Social

Care, the CCG, Leicestershire Partnership NHS
Trust, University Hospitals of Leicester NHS
Trust and East Midlands Ambulance Service
will take an operational lead to ensure the
delivery of the programme. The group will
liaise with and provide reports to key
stakeholders/partners supporting the
programme. These include Public Health,
Specialist Providers, Children’s Services,
Housing, Healthwatch, self-advocates and
carers, all of whom are members of the
Learning Disability Partnership Board (LDPB).

2 Winterbourne View Local Stocktake — Leicester City

Good practice example
(please tick and attach)

1. Governance Structure
Chart

2. HWBB Terms of
Reference (TOR)

3. Six Lives TOR

Support
required




1.3 Have you established a planning function that will support the
development of the kind of services needed for those people that have
been reviewed and for other people with complex needs.

1.4 Is the Learning Disability Partnership Board (or alternate arrangement)
monitoring and reporting on progress.

1.5 Is the Health and Wellbeing Board engaged with local arrangements for
delivery and receiving reports on progress.

1.6 Does the partnership have arrangements in place to resolve differences
should they arise.

1.3 A refresh of both the Learning Disability
and Mental Health Joint Commissioning
Strategies is currently underway. These build
on the Six Lives action plan and will include
future work in relation to the Winterbourne
Joint Improvement Programme. The LDPB will
monitor the work plan and receive regular
updates and progress reports.

1.4 The LDPB, which has quarterly meetings
and is co-chaired by the Assistant Mayor with
the lead responsibility for Adult Social Care
and a person with a learning disability, will
receive regular updates and be asked to
monitor our progress. The LDPB will also act
in an advisory capacity to the programme,
thereby ensuring meaningful inclusion of the
views and challenge of experts by experience.

1.5 The Health and Wellbeing Board is fully
engaged and will receive updates and
progress reports at each meeting from the
chair of the Joint Integrated Commissioning
Group (JICG), a sub-group of the Health and
Wellbeing Board.

1.6 Commissioners and key Operational and
Finance Senior Managers from the LA and
CCG are represented at the LD and MH Joint
Commissioning Board (JCB). Should
differences arise that cannot be resolved in
that forum they will be escalated to the JICG.

3 Winterbourne View Local Stocktake — Leicester City

4.

5.

6.

7.

LDPB Minutes Mar.2013
(Ref 5.10)

LDPB Minutes Sept.2012
(Ref. 6.4 t0 6.8) TOR (see
membership)

JICG Minutes

LD & MH JCB TOR




1.7 Are accountabilities to local, regional and national bodies clear and
understood across the partnership — e.g. HWB Board, NHSE Local Area
Teams / CCG fora, clinical partnerships & Safeguarding Boards.

1.8 Do you have any current issues regarding Ordinary Residence and the
potential financial risks associated with this.

1.9 Has consideration been given to key areas where you might be able to
use further support to develop and deliver your plan.

1.7 The JICG has taken the responsibility for
delivering the local plan through the LD & MH
JCB. Winterbourne is a standing agenda item
at the JCB ensuring a robust and regular
mechanism for reports, identifying of issues
and solutions.

1.8 The issues around ordinary residence are
being considered from several different
perspectives:

e People out of county who want to
remain in that area in supported
living

e City funded people who want to
come back to ‘greater’ Leicester, but
not live in the city

e People from other authorities who
are in Leicester

e Local agreement with Leicestershire
on the exchange of cases

e Working with neighbouring
authorities in relation to ex-campus
individuals

1.9 Specific support requirements will be
identified as we implement the programme.
However, there are several areas where we
would welcome the opportunity to share
learning and good practice. The three areas
we have identified to date include:
e the challenges of information sharing,
in particular between the CCG and
NHS England
e the application of the CHC guidance

4 Winterbourne View Local Stocktake — Leicester City




in relation to the Challenging
Behaviour domain and Section 117

e Ensuring the inclusion of families at
an early stage and throughout the
process of planning.

2. Understanding the money
2.1 Are the costs of current services understood across the partnership.

2.2 Is there clarity about source(s) of funds to meet current costs, including
funding from specialist commissioning bodies, continuing Health Care and
NHS and Social Care.

2.3 Do you currently use S75 arrangements that are sufficient & robust.

2.1 Work is underway to develop a
comprehensive understanding of costs for
each partner and establish a needs based
approach to ensure individuals are
safeguarded and are receiving appropriate
care and support.

2.2 Funding streams and eligibility are
currently under scrutiny. Children placed in
registered hospitals under CAMHS Tier 4 have
their provision commissioned and funded by
NHS England.

2.3 The section 75 agreement with the PCT is
being redrafted to take on board the
responsibilities and implications of the new
commissioning and funding arrangements.

2.4 Is there a pooled budget and / or clear arrangements to share financial
risk.

2.4 Although all patients in secure hospitals
are funded by NHS England, Pooled Budget
arrangements are being considered by the
JICG. However, there is already full
commitment and work underway to establish
the clear alignment of priorities and spend.
Additionally, Leicester City Council and
Leicester City Clinical Commissioning Group
will be submitting an expression of interest to

5 Winterbourne View Local Stocktake — Leicester City

8.

JICG Integration Pioneer
Proposal




2.5 Have you agreed individual contributions to any pool.

2.6 Does it include potential costs of young people in transition and of
children’s services.

become an integration pilot.

2.5 Currently not applicable.

2.6. Although there are no Pooled Budget
arrangements in place, Children’s Services
have aligned budgets in place across Health,
Social Care and Education to fund local
enhanced holistic packages or external
placements where appropriate, to meet the
needs of children with complex needs,
including those in transition. Leicester is a
special educational needs and disability
(SEND) Pathfinder and a decision has been
taken to focus local work on young people
with profound and multiple learning
disabilities. The pathfinders are seeking to:

e to develop a new birth to 25
assessment process and a single
Education, Health and Care Plan
(EHCP);

e to explore how the voluntary and
community sectors can introduce
more independence to the process;

e to ensure the full engagement of
children and young people and their
parents and families;

e to ensure the full engagement of
schools and colleges; and

e toimprove choice, control and
outcomes for children and young
people through the use of personal
budgets and direct payments.

6 Winterbourne View Local Stocktake — Leicester City

9. SEND Pathfinder
Programme Report




2.7 Between the partners is there an emerging financial strategy in the
medium term that is built on current cost, future investment and
potential for savings.

2.7 Pooled budgets and joint commissioning
arrangements are being considered by the
JICG.

However significant work is taking place in
relation to benchmarking and understanding
current and future costs and pressures across
both partners in order to inform future
investment, potential for savings and
refocusing spending priorities to meet the
challenges ahead.

3. Case management for individuals
3.1 Do you have a joint, integrated community team?

3.2 Is there clarity about the role and function of the local community team?

3.3 Does it have capacity to deliver the review and re-provision programme.

3.1 No, but joint working arrangements are
being established which will include regular
meetings to support one another with
particularly complex cases.

3.2 There is a monthly Leicester,
Leicestershire and Rutland multi agency
meeting, attended by Specialised
Commissioning, local clinicians and LA/NHS
commissioners. All adults with LD who are
inpatients are discussed if they:
1) Arein secure hospital requiring a
move to a different level of security
2) Require admission to secure hospital
settings
3) Are ready for discharge and a local
exit plan is to be agreed
The process is replicated in Children’s
Services

7 Winterbourne View Local Stocktake — Leicester City




3.4 Is there clarity about overall professional leadership of the review
programme.

3.5 Are the interests of people who are being reviewed, and of family carers,
supported by named workers and / or advocates.

3.3 As part of co-ordinating the review
process we have recognised the need to
revisit our local arrangements and pathways
to ensure they are configured to provide the
best service to individuals. This will identify
where there may be need for revised
arrangements

3.4 Collaborative management arrangements
are supported by clinical leads for LD and a
quality lead in the CCG.

NHS England’s Specialised Commissioning
Team applies the national Access Assessment
Commissioning Guidance (May 2012)
procedure for determining the level of
security a patient requires and the admission
process into and through secure care.

3.5 Case managers encourage this and
delivery is monitored through the contract
process.

Individuals are allocated to teams who
provide on-going support as required. Once
allocated to a worker individuals and families
will have named support. We have good links
with advocacy agencies and advocates will be
referred as required.

Within the Leicestershire Partnership Trust
(Agnes Unit) the Care Programme Approach
is utilised for reviews. Family carers, named
workers and advocates are included where
appropriate. For CHC managed cases — this
requires further work to confirm that the
interests of people who are being reviewed,

8 Winterbourne View Local Stocktake — Leicester City




family carers and advocates are supported by
named workers and/or advocates in each
instance.

NHS England case managers review and
ensure patients are safe, that there is an
appropriate and timely treatment plan and
exit strategy developed. It is the responsibility
of the provider to involve the patient or their
representative, families, external
professionals and advocates.

4. Current Review Programme

4.1 Is there agreement about the numbers of people who will be affected by
the programme and are arrangements being put in place to support them
and their families through the process.

4.1 There is clarity around the current
inpatient population affected by the
programme and consideration is being given
to extending the cohort through
identification of individuals who are at risk of
admission to ensure that we can plan more
effectively for their needs to be met. We will
support individuals and their families through
the process as we would any family where we
need to review with a view to moving
someone. This ensures full involvement,
giving clear information as to the reasons for
the move and the options available and
providing advocacy and other support to
enable them to make decisions.

From a children’s complex care perspective,
there is an identified Children’s Complex Care
Manager who has ensured full transfer to the
appropriate CCGs and maintenance of cases
and records.

NHS England case managers review all
patients as per the NHS England Case
Manager Guidance 2013. Once information
sharing issues have been resolved we

9 Winterbourne View Local Stocktake — Leicester City

10. Learning Disability In-
Patient Register




4.2 Are arrangements for review of people funded through specialist
commissioning  clear.

4.3 Are the necessary joint arrangements (including people with learning
disability, carers, advocacy organisations, Local Healthwatch) agreed and
in place.

4.4 |s there confidence that comprehensive local registers of people with
behaviour that challenges have been developed and are being used.

4.5 Is there clarity about ownership, maintenance and monitoring of local
registers following transition to CCG, including identifying who should be
the first point of contact for each individual

envisage working with the NHS England case
managers in the same way as the CCH team
so we can plan for future discharge.

4.2 Responsibility for reviewing is clear
depending on the funding arrangements and
within these the reviewing arrangements are
consistent.

NHS England case managers review all
patients as per the NHS England Case
Manager Guidance 2013.

4.3 The LDPB receives periodic reports from
Healthwatch and the Safeguarding Unit. A
QAF is in place and this is being extended to
include peer reviews.

4.4 The current LD register is being
reconfigured to enable new data to be
collected and collated, to meet changing
requirements. This work is being undertaken
by the CCGs and will be supported by
Leicester, Leicestershire and Rutland local
authorities and the provider trust. The
inpatient register has been developed and
work is underway to expand the dataset to
ensure that there is adequate information to
inform the development of future services.

4.5 A new agreement is currently being
negotiated between the CCGs &
Leicestershire Partnership NHS Trust for the
revision of the Register to meet current

10 Winterbourne View Local Stocktake — Leicester City

11. Safeguarding Adults:
Multi-Agency Policy &
Procedures

January 2010

12. Proposed Learning
Disability In Patient Dataset




4.6 Is advocacy routinely available to people (and family) to support
assessment, care planning and review processes

4.7 How do you know about the quality of the reviews and how good practice
in this area is being developed.

4.8 Do completed reviews give a good understanding of behaviour support
being offered in individual situations.

needs.

NHS England has a database for all LD
children and adult patients that are in secure
hospital or CAMHS services placements
funded by NHS England. The first point of
contact is the NHS England case manager

4.6 Yes, we have advocacy contracts and
arrangements in place which are monitored
as part of the contractual arrangements and
via the quality audit.

4.7 All reassessments are authorised by
managers and complex packages of care are
required to go to a Quality Assurance panel,
chaired by a senior manager, to check the
quality of the assessment and
appropriateness of the support plan. For local
providers the quality of reviews is assured via
the CPA process, quality indicators in
contracts and quality visits to the Assessment
and Treatment Unit by commissioners.

4.8 The reviews do address support needs
but in order to enhance the understanding of
behaviour support required, pen portraits
relating to individual patients are being
produced by providers including the Local
Provider Trust and CHC. Case managers
encourage this and delivery is monitored
through the contract process. This will be
included in the quality assurance process that
the CCG is undertaking.

For NHS England Case managers and the

11 Winterbourne View Local Stocktake — Leicester City




Supplier, managers monitoring a person is at
the centre of the care approach through the
contract process and case reviews. Evidence
is collated to demonstrate providers are
implementing ‘My Shared Pathway’ with
evidence of use of easy read documentation
and/or total communication systems. The
‘My Shared Pathway’ has been a CQINN since
2012/13.

4.9 Have all the required reviews been completed. Are you satisfied that
there are clear plans for any outstanding reviews to be completed.

4.9 All reviews for children placed out of area
or receiving a local enhanced package
through complex care have been completed
or have a clear set date to be completed.

All Adult Learning Disability/Autistic Spectrum
Disorder reviews have be completed and
there is a timeline identified for each patient
for moving on/discharge

5. Safeguarding

5.1 Where people are placed out of your area, are you engaged with local
safeguarding arrangements — e.g. in line with the ADASS protocol.

5.1 NHS England through contact and
monitoring are linked into local safeguarding
issues related to patients they are
responsible for.

¢ The local authority has a process of
contracting with providers when placing
people, such that they would have to comply
with a core contract. An expectation of the
specifications is that the agency is compliant
with safeguarding processes.

*The process of establishing the out of area
contract involves enquiry with that particular
local authority to gain information to validate
that we should contract with the same
provider.

¢ As a placing authority we would expect to
be informed of concerns that might trigger

12 Winterbourne View Local Stocktake — Leicester City




safeguarding enquiry in the local host
authority.

¢ As the placing authority we would expect to
be invited to any safeguarding meetings and
engaged in local processes.

¢ If the distance of the out of area concern is
great (e.g. Glasgow) we have also asked for
that local authority to provide an
independent annual review of the placement.

5.2 How are you working with care providers (including housing) to ensure
sharing of information & develop risk assessments.?

5.2
Safeguarding Adults Information Sharing
Agreement in place, currently being
revised to make it more staff friendly into
a toolkit format with an FAQ section.

e Leicester Safeguarding Adults Board
(LSAB) newsletter produced quarterly
which is shared with all the care
providers to maintain communication
channels and the LSAB provides an
annual conference for all staff in Leicester
working with vulnerable adults.

e The care provider group EMCARE and
East Midlands housing association sit at
board level.

e Care Providers Forum/ Care Summit/
Carers Action Group.

e Care Assessment has a section regarding
sharing information with third parties.

e Contractually, duty to cooperate with
safeguarding investigations.

e QCT champion good practice examples of
risk assessments and improvement plans.

e In Large Scale Investigations and
individual safeguarding investigations the
care provider receives copies of minutes.

13 Winterbourne View Local Stocktake — Leicester City

13. Safeguarding Adults

Information Sharing

Agreement (Appendix 2 p174

of Safeguarding Adults: Multi-

Agency Policy & Procedures
January 2010)




5.3 Have you been fully briefed on whether inspection of units in your locality
have taken place, and if so are issues that may have been identified being
worked on.

5.4 Are you satisfied that your Children and Adults Safeguarding Boards are
in touch with your Winterbourne View review and development
programme.

In July 2012 the Leicester City Primary
Care Trust provided a report to the LSAB
Executive Group relating to assurance
activity within the PCT cluster in respect
of commissioning learning disability
services following WBV and Castlebeck.
The CCG have planned to complete joint
reviews with the local authority of private
hospitals within the local area.

‘Learning Disability Group — 6 Lives’ has
representation from the CCG and the
local authority. This group are
responsible for coordinating the
completion of the action plan and
providing assurance to the LSAB.

The Learning Disability Partnership Board
receives periodic updates on
safeguarding and the outcomes of

Healthwatch (LINks) enter and view
reports.

The LSAB’s Executive Group will be
requesting a ‘one year on’ briefing from
agencies on actions taken following the
previous report.

5.4

October 2011 the LSAB were

circulated the BBC iplayer link to the
programme requesting they make note of its
content.

December 2011 an update on the

review progress was shared with the LSABs

14 Winterbourne View Local Stocktake — Leicester City




Adult Review Group, noting that Margaret
Flynn was completing the Serious Case
Review, an author who we have previously
used locally.

. In April 2012 the Leicester
Safeguarding Adults Board received a
presentation from the Leicester City Primary
Care Trust’s Safeguarding Adults Team on the
learning from Winterbourne View and the
PCT’s local experience.

o In July 2012 the Leicester City Primary
Care Trust provided a report to the LSAB
Executive Group relating to assurance activity
within the PCT cluster in respect of
commissioning learning disability services
following WBYV and Castlebeck.

. In February 2013 Browne Jacobson
published their round table event on
Winterbourne View which was shared with
Adult Review Group members and the LSAB
Chair.

. In June 2012 the PCT presented a
formal report to the LSAB on providing PCT
assurances for their agencies and
commissioned services around learning from
the national reviews into Winterbourne View
and also Castlebeck.

o On 20 August 2012 the Leicester
safeguarding adults board’s adult review
group received the Winterbourne View
Serious Case Review Executive Summary by
Dr Margaret Flynn and discussed its content.
. WBV was made reference to in our
independent chairs introduction to the LSAB
annual report 11/12 and the LSAB’s October
and January newsletters noting the review’s
publication and then the government’s

Winterbourne View Local Stocktake — Leicester City




16

response.
e LPT Safeguarding Committee gets regular
updates on LD plans and these are shared
with Boards.
o Our Independent Chair and our CCG
Board members attended a regional event on
WBY run by the Care Quality Commission in
March 2013 and fedback to the LSAB.
. Our Independent Chair reviewed the
Interim CCG assurance framework 2013/14
noting the WBV “Has the CCG self-assessed
and identified any risk to progress against its
Winterbourne View action plan?” requesting
local assurance through the Safeguarding
Effectiveness Group where the PCT provided
a report.
. The LSAB’s Safeguarding
Effectiveness Group received information
that regionally the SHA had reviewed the
SAAF for LPT, of which they received a
positive review noting that the outcomes and
recommendations from the Winterbourne
Serious Case Review had been identified in
reporting to the board of directors. It had
identified that the trust had engaged in an
effective programme to learn from the
serious case review and adopt key
recommendations in addressing the needs of
vulnerable people coming into the service. In
responding to Winterbourne View reviews
and the Francis report they have piloted a
panel involving people who use services and
family carers and will be rolling this out
across the Trust.
. The Local Safeguarding Children’s
Board’s Executive Chair attends the LSAB, and
share the same Independent Safeguarding

Winterbourne View Local Stocktake — Leicester City

14. Lessons learnt from
Winterbourne View Hospital -
LD Division Action Plan for
The Agnes Unit Update April
2013




5.5 Have they agreed a clear role to ensure that all current placements take
account of existing concerns/alerts, the requirements of DoLS and the
monitoring of restraint?

Board Chair for key messages to be
disseminated between the two. Both
Safeguarding Board Managers are members
of both sets of Review Groups for the LSAB
and LSCB.

. The LSAB’s multi-agency training
programme is continuously updated to
include relevant local and national case
examples, and was updated to reference to
WBY review.

5.5

e Across Leicester, Leicestershire and
Rutland there is a joint DolLS
partnership service. This DolLS
partnership arrangement is managed
by the Local Implementation Network
(LIN) which monitors quality through
a multi-agency quality assurance
framework.

e The LSAB receives a quarterly update
from the DolLS Service at every
meeting on the statistics and good
practice examples and identified
areas for improvement; providing the
LSAB with assurance and the
opportunity to ask questions and
commission pieces of work.

e The Leicestershire Social Care and
Development Group provide DolLS
and MCA Training to care homes free
across Leicester, Leicestershire and
Rutland.

e Concerns and alerts about care
providers are recorded on the local

17 Winterbourne View Local Stocktake — Leicester City




5.6 Are there agreed multi-agency programmes that support staff in all
settings to share information and good practice regarding people with
learning disability and behaviour that challenges who are currently placed
in hospital settings.

5.7 Is your Community Safety Partnership considering any of the issues that
might impact on people with learning disability living in less restrictive
environments.

authorities, adult social care
recording system through the
‘notification of concern’ section and
safeguarding adults recording
section.

The LSAB’s multi-agency training
programme is continuously updated to
include relevant local and national case
examples, and was updated to reference
the WBV review.

The local authority is currently in the
process of revamping its safeguarding
adults professional practice forum open
to adult social care and health.

The local authority has recently put on a
number of ‘master classes’ open to social
care and health, a few of which include
MCA and DolS as the focus.

The Leicestershire Social Care and
Development Group have a number of
training courses available for staff in all
settings to look at DoLS and MCA

The local authority is in the process of
inviting Mark Neary to speak at a half day
training event for staff regarding proper
use of DoLS and providing real case
examples and family stories.

The Community Safety Partnership in
Leicester (The Safer Leicester
Partnership) has a Safeguarding Adults

18 Winterbourne View Local Stocktake — Leicester City




5.8 Has your Safeguarding Board got working links between CQC, contracts
management, safeguarding staff and care/case managers to maintain
alertness to concerns.

Delivery Group within its structure. The
LSAB’s Executive Group acts as a dual
function for the SLP and the LSAB
reporting updates to both as required
delivering on priorities.

The Care Quality Commission (CQC) is a
floating member of the LSAB and is
invited annually to a meeting to present
an update on its work. In 2012 the board
received an update on CQC’s work,
including its learning from reviews such
as Castlebeck and Winterbourne View
with assurances as to how its is
improving its systems and in 2013 CQC
provided an update.

Another member of the LSAB is the
Director of Care Services and
Commissioning who is responsible for all
local authority commissioning of care
providers. Where appropriate the LSAB
invites key players from Continuing Heath
Care and the Service Contracting and
Procurement Unit to be on task and finish

groups.

The LSAB's task and finish group —
‘Raising Care Home Quality’ reviewed the
intelligence gathering aspect of care
home activity as part of their remit.

19 Winterbourne View Local Stocktake — Leicester City




They found that the local authority
records Notifications of Concern (NOC)
raised about providers, which allows the
Safeguarding Team and the Contracts
Team to identify trends and patterns in
these to initiate relevant action. These
NoCs are recorded on the adult social
care recording system within the local
authority and allow social workers to
review and inform them with regard to
information alerted to the local authority
about the home. The Large Scale
Investigations information is also stored
on the same system allowing social
workers to see what involvement the
safeguarding team currently has with a
care home when seeking to place service
users.

To enhance the contract monitoring process,
the City Council has developed a Quality
Assurance Framework and a self-assessment
for providers which will result in a star rating
once the evidence provided has been verified
following conversations with staff, service
users and families. Additionally the council
will carry out announced and unannounced
visits and look back on complaints and
notifications of concern to ensure a
triangulated approach to rating providers in
order to give assurance to stakeholders in

Winterbourne View Local Stocktake — Leicester City




relation to quality and safeguarding.

6. Commissioning arrangements

6.1 Are you completing an initial assessment of commissioning requirements
to support people’s move from assessment and treatment/in-patient
settings.

6.2 Are these being jointly reviewed, developed and delivered.

6.3 Is there a shared understanding of how many people are placed out of
area and of the proportion of this to total numbers of people fully funded
by NHS CHC and those jointly supported by health and care services.

6.4 Do commissioning intentions reflect both the need deliver a re-provision
programme for existing people and the need to substantially reduce
future hospital placements for new people.

6.5 Have joint reviewing and (de)commissioning arrangements been agreed
with specialist commissioning teams.

6.1 As well as the information contained in
the inpatient register, pen portraits are being
produced by providers/case managers to
inform the commissioning requirement for
the current inpatients. Alongside this we are
working with our stakeholders as outlined in
1.3 above.

6.2 Yes, this information will be jointly
reviewed, developed and delivered by the
CCG and Local Authority.

6.3 There is an understanding of the numbers
of individuals. There are however reviews
currently being undertaken which may alter
the funding streams, following the change in
CHC Guidance.

6.4 This will form part of the delivery plan
and be agreed at the LD & MH JCB.

6.5 This will form part of the delivery plan
and be agreed at the LD & MH JCB.

21 Winterbourne View Local Stocktake — Leicester City




6.6 Have the potential costs and source(s) of funds of future commissioning
arrangements been assessed.

6.6 The work is still in progress, however
there is recognition of the need to review
investment in this area

6.7 Are local arrangements for the commissioning of advocacy support
sufficient, if not, are changes being developed.

6.8 Is your local delivery plan in the process of being developed, resourced
and agreed?

6.9 Are you confident that the 1 June 2014 target will be achieved (the
commitment is for all people currently in in-patient settings to be placed
nearer home and in a less restrictive environment).

6.10 If no, what are the obstacles, to delivery (e.g. organisational, financial,
legal).

6.7 Local advocacy arrangements are in place
and are being further developed with the
CCGs.

6.8 The local delivery plan is currently being
developed and will be presented to the CCG,
the JICG and the Health and Wellbeing Board
for sign off upon completion.

6.9 It is expected that the remaining
individuals that will be ready for discharge
will be supported to move within the given
timescale. We do not envisage any significant
challenges for individuals expected to be
ready for discharge.

6.10 As already identified there are
challenges around the interpretation of the
CHC guidance and section 117 which is
delaying decision making on future funding
arrangements. These processes are currently
under review to ensure that individual needs
and support are not compromised.

CHC and
section
117
process
under
review

7. Developing local teams and services

7.1 Are you completing an initial assessment of commissioning requirements
to support peoples’ move from assessment and treatment/in-patient

7.1 The inpatient register is being analysed
and enhanced to better inform this

22 Winterbourne View Local Stocktake — Leicester City




settings.

7.2 Do you have ways of knowing about the quality and effectiveness of
advocacy arrangements?

7.3 Do you have plans to ensure that there is capacity to ensure that Best
Interests assessors are involved in care planning?

assessment and will be supported by joint
working with our neighbouring authority.

7.2 Yes, advocacy contracts are monitored
and reviewed regularly as part of our contract
monitoring arrangements which will include
quality checking with individuals and their
families

7.3 Based on the numbers involved there will
be adequate capacity in the Best Interests
team.

8. Prevention and crisis response capacity - Local/shared capacity to
manage emergencies

8.1 Do commissioning intentions include an assessment of capacity that will
be required to deliver crisis response services locally.

8.2 Do you have / are you working on developing emergency responses that

would avoid hospital admission (including under section of MHA.)

8.3 Do commissioning intentions include a workforce and skills assessment
development?

8.1 This will form part of the delivery plan
and joint working with our neighbouring
authority as described at 7.1.

8.2 Part of the local work plan includes an
audit of historic cases and working with
individuals, their families and those who
support them to understand what, if anything
could have prevented their admission. This
will help shape future provision and practice.

8.3 Part of the wider transformation agenda
includes the development of a Workforce
Strategy which will consider a skills
assessment and required development of the
internal and external workforce to meet
changing need and priority based on
enhancing choice and control for individuals

23 Winterbourne View Local Stocktake — Leicester City




and their families.

There is a small Outreach Team within the LD
Division of LPT and as part of the SDI (Service
Development Initiatives) it is planned for
review in 2013 with a view to looking at
increasing the flexibility and capacity to
prevent admissions.

9. Understanding the population who need/receive services

9.1 Do your local planning functions and market assessments support the
development of support for all people with complex needs, including
people with behaviour that challenges?

9.2 From the current people who need to be reviewed, are you taking
account of ethnicity, age profile and gender issues in planning and
understanding future care services.

9.1 Information from the needs assessment
will inform market development and the
ongoing work with the provider market to
support the changing needs and priorities.

9.2 There is an understanding of the needs of
the small number of people currently
affected by the review for whom
personalised solutions are being worked on.
Ongoing work will include looking at the
wider needs of this customer group to ensure
appropriate provision is in place. In
Leicestershire we have a wider register of
people with learning disabilities. The register
identifies those who are at risk of needing
additional support with managing their
behaviours. This will be used to inform our
JSNA and planning for future accommodation
and support needs.

15. Market Position 2012
Statement is currently being
refreshed. (Sec. 2 Supply &
Sec 3 Delivery models)

Joint Specific Needs
Assessment currently being
undertaken & will be available
in autumn 2013.

24 Winterbourne View Local Stocktake — Leicester City




10. Children and adults — transition planning
10.1Do commissioning arrangements take account of the needs of children
and young people in transition as well as of adults.

10.2 Have you developed ways of understanding future demand in terms of
numbers of people and likely services.

10.1 Yes, we have a specific Transitions
Partnership Board that is co-chaired by our
Heads of Service from Adults and Children’s
Services (Removing the Barriers). The work
plan feeds into and informs commissioning
plans. With matched funding from the
Regional Joint Improvement Programme, we
piloted a family leadership programme aimed
at families of young people with complex
needs in order to engage them in planning for
the longer term future of their loved ones
and to support a change in aspiration,
thinking and exploring possibilities.

10.2 The Transition team redevelopment of
the transitions database is taking information
from education, health and social care from
the age of 14 to map and plan for future
need. In addition a jointly funded Transitions
Project Worker is undertaking specific work
with schools and colleges to understand the
history, needs, aspirations, destinations,
plans and outcomes for young people with
complex needs, aged 14 to 25. This work
involves looking retrospectively, at what has
occurred over the last 5 years, as well as at
future need and cohorts of individuals.

16. Family Leadership
Programme Report

11. Current and future market requirements and capacity
11.1 Is an assessment of local market capacity in progress?

11.1 The Independent Living and Extra Care
strategy (currently being refreshed)
addresses market capacity for
accommodation. The ASC Market Position
Statement will support the market to develop
services that meet the needs of current and
future communities, targeting our resources
to the most vulnerable in society.

25 Winterbourne View Local Stocktake — Leicester City

17. Choice Unlimited Flyer

18.
www.choosemysupport.org.uk




11.2 Does this include an updated gap analysis?

11.2 The JSNA is currently being refreshed
and has a chapter on Learning Disability,
which includes a gap analysis. Through the
Right to Control local trailblazer, two large
scale events were held in partnership with
our User Led Organisation, for providers to
talk directly with and showcase their offer to
individuals, families and professionals. Part of
the conversation included gathering
information about gaps in the market.
Additionally the Choose My Support website
also has a mechanism for capturing gaps in
the market based on searches for service and
support by individuals, families and workers.

11.3 Are there local examples of innovative practice that can be shared more
widely, e.g. the development of local fora to share/learn and develop

best practice.

11.3 There is a Leicester, Leicestershire and
Rutland NHS Autism Strategy group which has
overseen the development of our local
Autism Diagnostic and Support Pathway
across Children and Adult services. This work
and practice has been shared across the East
Midlands region, and beyond.

In order to address a gap identified in the
development of the Autism Pathway, local
commissioners in partnership with the CCG
lead for Autism are developing a specification
to enhance the current Learning Disability
Service within the provider trust to offer a
holistic diagnostic and support service to
adults across the whole Autistic Spectrum.

19. Autism LLR Strategy
Group TOR

20. Adult Autism Pathway
Overview (Mapping skills for
standards - 10)

26 Winterbourne View Local Stocktake — Leicester City




Please send questions, queries or completed stocktake to Sarah.brown@®Iocal.gov.uk by 5" July 2013
This document has been completed by

Name: Yasmin Surti

Organisation: Leicester City Council

Contact: 0116 252 6957/Yasmin.Surti@leicester.gov.uk

oy (el

Signed by: Chair HWB LA Chief Executive

Agraat

27 Winterbourne View Local Stocktake — Leicester City

CCG Rep



This page is left blank intentionally.



	Agenda
	4 DISCUSSION SESSION - JOINT HEALTH AND WELLBEING STRATEGY PRIORITY 3: SUPPORT  INDEPENDENCE
	6 MID-STAFFORDSHIRE FOUNDATION TRUST PUBLIC INQUIRY
	7 HEALTH PROTECTION BOARD
	8 WINTERBOURNE VIEW CONCORDAT
	FINAL HWB cover sheet Winterbourne view stocktake 110713 (4)
	FINAL Leicester City_Stocktake_Winterbourne_View_Joint_Improvement_Programme Response 020713 (3)


